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Item 1.  BUSINESS 
-------  -------- 
 



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS 
 
This  Form  10-K  contains  forward-looking  statem ents.  These  statements  are 
necessarily  subject  to risk  and  uncertainty.  A ctual  results  could  differ 
materially from those projected in these forward-lo oking statements.  These risk 
factors include, but are not limited to, the follow ing: 
 
         o        The cyclical nature of automobile  sales; 
 
         o        Lithia's   ability   to   negotia te   profitable,    accretive 
                  acquisitions; 
 
         o        Lithia's   ability  to  secure   manufacturer   approvals  for 
                  acquisitions; and 
 
         o        Lithia's   ability   to   retain   existing   management   and 
                  successfully manage the stores. 
 
See Exhibit 99 to this Form 10-K for a more complet e discussion of risk factors. 
 
GENERAL 
 
Lithia is a leading  operator of automotive  franch ises  and retailer of new and 
used  vehicles and  services.  As of March 1, 2001,   we offered 26 brands of new 
vehicles,  through 114  franchises in 56 locations in the western  United States 
and over  the  Internet.  We  currently  operate  1 5  stores  in  Oregon,  14 in 
California,  7 in Washington, 6 in Colorado, 6 in I daho, 5 in Nevada, 2 in South 
Dakota and 1 in Alaska.  Lithia sells new and used cars and light trucks,  sells 
replacement  parts,  provides vehicle  maintenance,   warranty,  paint and repair 
services,  and arranges  related  financing  and  i nsurance  for its  automotive 
customers. 
 
Lithia  Motors,  Inc.  was  founded in 1946 and its  two senior  executives  have 
managed Lithia for more than 30 years.  Management has developed and implemented 
its  acquisition  and  operating  strategies,   whi ch  have  enabled  Lithia  to 
successfully  identify,   acquire  and  integrate  stores,  achieving  financial 
performance superior to industry averages. Lithia h as achieved compounded annual 
growth rates over the last four years of 85% per ye ar for annual  revenues,  75% 
per year for net income and 36% per year for earnin gs per share.  Since December 
1996, when we completed our initial public offering ,  we have acquired or opened 
51 stores and are actively pursuing additional acqu isitions. 
 
According  to industry  data,  the number of  franc hised  automobile  stores has 
declined from more than 36,000 stores in 1960 to un der 22,000 in 2000. As of the 
end of 1999,  the largest 100 dealer groups  genera ted  12.3% of total  industry 
sales.  Based on our current  annual  revenue run r ate of over $1.7 billion,  we 
believe that we are one of the 10 largest automobil e retailers in the country. 
 
Further consolidation of the automotive retailing i ndustry is expected due to: 
 
         o        The  high  cost  of  entry  into  the  franchised   automobile 
                  business; 
 
         o        Many stores owned by  individuals   who are nearing  retirement 
                  age; and 
 
         o        The  desire  of   manufacturers  to  strengthen  their  dealer 
                  networks through consolidation. 
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GROWTH STRATEGY 
 
Lithia has become a leading  acquirer and operator of  automobile  stores in the 
western and  inter-mountain  United States.  We tar get  acquisitions  in markets 



where we have the opportunity to acquire or build a  significant market presence. 
Our preference is either to make a strategic  acqui sition in a new territory and 
acquire  one or two stores at a time to  establish  that  market  presence  (via 
"Fill-ins"), or to acquire an entire group at one t ime (a "Platform").  Lithia's 
current   core   markets  are   South-Central   Ore gon,   Northern   California, 
South-Central Valley, California,  Northern Nevada,  Eastern Washington,  Denver, 
Colorado and Boise,  Idaho.  Lithia's  strict  disc ipline in purchasing  stores, 
combined with its ability to improve  profitability   by implementing  the Lithia 
operating model into acquired  stores,  has effecti vely  allowed Lithia to build 
profitable store groups in each new area. 
 
Since our initial  public  offering  in December  1 996,  we have  completed  the 
purchase of 47 stores with the following revenues a t the time of acquisition: 
 
 
 
                                         Number 
                                       of stores            Revenues 
                      Year              acquired          (in millions) 
                ----------------    --------------- -    ----------------- 
                      1996                 2                  $ 60 
                      1997                10                   300 
                      1998                11                   310 
                      1999                13                   585 
                      2000                 8                   254 
                      2001                 3                    85 
                ----------------    --------------- -   ---------------- 
                     Total                47                $1,594 
                                    =============== =   ================ 
 
 
OPERATING STRATEGY 
 
After acquiring a new store,  Lithia  implements it s operating model to maximize 
the  overall  franchise  value of each  location.  Lithia's  operating  strategy 
consists of the following elements: 
 
Value Partnership with  Manufacturers  Lithia views  the  manufacturer/franchisee 
relationship   as  a  valuable   partnership.   The    manufacturers   are  large 
well-developed  companies with enormous resources  committed to the franchise as 
the method of retailing their products.  They lend support in training  Lithia's 
employees;  in allocating  vehicles;  in designing  systems for  operations;  in 
selling  slower-moving  inventories  through  incen tives  and  rebates;  and  in 
advertising  through regional and national  sources .  Lithia relies on this help 
and  encourages  their  assistance as a welcome  pa rtner.  Lithia  cooperates in 
facility design, in marketing efforts, brand realig nment and in program support. 
 
Provide a Broad Range of Products  and Services  Li thia  offers a broad range of 
products and services  including a wide selection o f new and used cars and light 
trucks, vehicle financing and insurance and replace ment parts and service. 
 
Lithia seeks to increase  customer  traffic and mee t specific  customer needs by 
offering new and used vehicles and an array of comp lementary services at each of 
its locations. We believe that offering numerous ne w vehicle brands appeals to a 
variety of customers,  minimizes dependence on any one manufacturer, and reduces 
our exposure to supply problems and product cycles.  
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Emphasize  Sales  of  Higher  Margin  Products  and   Services  Lithia  generates 
substantial  incremental  revenue and net income by  arranging  the financing for 
the sale of vehicles and by selling  insurance,  ex tended service  contracts and 
vehicle  maintenance.  In 2000,  Lithia  arranged  financing  for 73% of its new 
vehicle  sales  and 72% of its  used  vehicle  sale s,  compared  to 49% and 59%, 
respectively, for the average automobile store in t he United States (2000 data). 



 
Employ  Professional  Management  Techniques Each s tore is its own profit center 
and is managed by an experienced general manager wh o has primary  responsibility 
for  inventory,   advertising,  pricing  and  perso nnel.  In  order  to  provide 
additional support towards improving performance, e ach store has available to it 
a team of  specialists in new vehicle  sales,  used  vehicle  sales,  finance and 
insurance,  service and parts,  and back office  ad ministration.  A  significant 
portion of the compensation of the general  manager s and department  managers is 
based on the profitability of their stores and depa rtments, respectively. Senior 
management monitors each store's sales, profitabili ty and inventory on a regular 
basis. 
 
Focus  on  Customer   Satisfaction  and  Loyalty  L ithia   emphasizes   customer 
satisfaction and works to develop a reputation for quality and fairness.  Lithia 
trains its sales  personnel to identify an  appropr iate  vehicle for each of its 
customers at an affordable price. 
 
Lithia's "Priority You" customer centered plan comm its to provide: 
 
         o        A complimentary credit check; 
 
         o        A complimentary vehicle appraisal ; 
 
         o        A 60-day/3,000 mile warranty on a ll used vehicles sold; and 
 
         o        A community donation for every ve hicle sold. 
 
We believe that  "Priority  You" helps  differentia te  us from other  automotive 
retail stores. 
 
We  believe  the  application  of this  operating  strategy  provides  us with a 
competitive  advantage  over many  stores and it is   critical  to our ability to 
achieve levels of profitability superior to industr y averages. 
 
Lithia has received a number of dealer quality and customer  satisfaction awards 
from various manufacturers this year and in the pas t. These include;  Chrysler's 
highest recognition for dealer excellence,  the Fiv e-Star Certification;  Ford's 
Blue Oval  Certificate;  Toyota's  President's Cup;  Honda's  President's  Award; 
Dodge's  National  Charger Club  membership,  Volks wagen of America's  Wolfsburg 
Crest Club Award; and Isuzu's Sendai Cup & Presiden t's Cup, each recognizing 
high sales volume and customer satisfaction. 
 
                                       4 
 
 
 
 
STORE OPERATIONS 
 
Lithia's  stores,  brands sold and the approximate  percentage of current annual 
revenues are as follows: 
 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
          Oregon Stores (15)                            Franchises (41)                  22% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Lithia Honda (Medford)                     Honda 
Lithia Volkswagen Isuzu (Medford)          Volkswag en, Isuzu 
Lithia Lincoln Mercury Mazda Suzuki        Lincoln/ Mercury, Mazda, Suzuki 
 (Medford) 
Lithia Toyota of Medford                   Toyota 
Lithia Dodge Chrysler Plymouth Jeep        Dodge, D odge Truck, Chrysler/Plymouth, 
 (Medford)                                  Jeep 
Saturn of Southwest Oregon (Medford)       Saturn 
Lithia Nissan BMW (Medford)                Nissan, BMW 
Lithia's Grants Pass Auto Center           Dodge, D odge Truck, Chrysler/Plymouth, 
                                            Jeep 



Saturn of Eugene*                          Saturn 
Lithia Dodge of Eugene                     Dodge, D odge Truck 
Lithia Toyota of Springfield               Toyota 
Lithia Nissan of Eugene                    Nissan 
Lithia Ford Lincoln Mercury Nissan of      Ford, Li ncoln/Mercury, Nissan 
 Roseburg 
Lithia Dodge Chrysler/Plymouth Jeep of     Dodge,  Dodge  Truck,  Chrysler/Plymouth, 
 Roseburg                                   Jeep 
Lithia Klamath Falls Auto Center           Toyota, Dodge, Dodge Truck, 
                                            Chrysle r/Plymouth, Jeep 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
        California Stores (14)                          Franchises (19)                  21% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Lithia Toyota of Vacaville                 Toyota 
Lithia Dodge of Concord                    Dodge, D odge Truck 
Lithia Volkswagen of Concord               Volkswag en, Isuzu 
Lithia Ford of Concord                     Ford 
Lithia Ford Lincoln Mercury of Napa        Ford, Li ncoln/Mercury 
Lithia Chevrolet of Redding                Chevrole t 
Lithia Toyota of Redding                   Toyota 
Lithia Nissan of Bakersfield               Nissan 
Lithia BMW of Bakersfield                  BMW 
Acura of Bakersfield                       Acura 
Lithia Ford of Fresno                      Ford 
Lithia Mazda Suzuki of Fresno              Mazda, S uzuki 
Lithia Nissan of Fresno                    Nissan 
Lithia Hyundai of Fresno                   Hyundai 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
          Colorado Stores (6)                           Franchises (18)                  20% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Lithia Centennial Chrysler Plymouth        Chrysler /Plymouth, Jeep 
 Jeep (Denver) 
Lithia Cherry Creek Dodge (Denver)         Dodge, D odge Truck 
Lithia Colorado Chrysler Plymouth Kia      Chrysler /Plymouth, Kia 
 (Denver) 
Lithia Foothills Chrysler Hyundai          Dodge,  Dodge  Truck,  Chrysler/Plymouth, 
 (Fort Collins)                             Hyundai , Jeep 
Lithia Colorado Jeep (Denver)              Jeep 
Lithia Colorado Springs Jeep Chrysler      Jeep, Ch rysler/Plymouth 
 Plymouth 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
         Washington Stores (7)                          Franchises (12)                  12% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Lithia Camp Chevrolet (Spokane)            Chevrole t 
Lithia Camp Imports (Spokane)              Subaru, BMW, Volvo 
Lithia Dodge of Tri-Cities                 Dodge, D odge Truck 
Lithia Ford of Tri-Cities*                 Ford 
Honda of Tri-Cities*                       Honda 
Lithia Dodge of Renton*                    Dodge, D odge Truck 
Lithia Chrysler Jeep of Renton*            Chrysler , Jeep 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
           Idaho Stores (6)                             Franchises (12)                  12% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Pocatello Dodge Chrysler Honda Hyundai*    Dodge,  Dodge  Truck,  Chrysler,   Honda, 
                                            Hyundai  
Roundtree Chevrolet (Boise)                Chevrole t 
Roundtree Lincoln-Mercury Isuzu (Boise)    Lincoln/ Mercury, Isuzu 
Roundtree Daewoo of Boise                  Daewoo 
Lithia Ford Chrysler of Boise*             Ford, Ch rysler 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
           Nevada Stores (5)                            Franchises (8)                    7% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Lithia Reno                                Suzuki, Audi, Lincoln/Mercury, Isuzu 
Lithia Volkswagen of Reno                  Volkswag en 
Lithia Sparks (satellite of Lithia         Suzuki, Lincoln/Mercury, Isuzu 
 Reno) 



Lithia Reno Hyundai                        Hyundai 
Lithia Reno Subaru                         Subaru 
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--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
        South Dakota Stores (2)                         Franchises (2)                    4% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Chevrolet of Sioux Falls*                  Chevrole t 
Lithia Subaru of Sioux Falls*              Subaru 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
           Alaska Store (1)                             Franchises (2)                    2% 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
Lithia Chrysler Jeep of Anchorage*         Chrysler , Jeep 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
               56 Stores                          1 14 Franchises - 26 Brands            100% 
 
--------------------------------------------------- ------------------------------------------ 
*Store acquired in 2000 or 2001. 
 
In 2000 and 2001 the following changes were made to  our franchises: 
 
         o        Two shared franchises in Reno, Ne vada were split, creating two 
                  separate stores; Lithia Reno Suba ru and Lithia Reno Hyundai; 
 
         o        The Daewoo  franchise  that was l ocated in Twin Falls,  Idaho, 
                  was closed in October 2000; 
 
         o        The Jeep franchise at our Lithia Jeep/Hyundai store in Fresno, 
                  California   was   exchanged   in   July  2000  for  Dodge  and 
                  Chrysler/Jeep  franchises  that  remain  to be opened in other 
                  markets; 
 
         o        The  Lithia  Jeep  of  Bakersfiel d  store  and  franchise  was 
                  exchanged in September  2000 for two new store  locations  for 
                  Chrysler/Dodge/Jeep  and  Dodge  that  remain  to be opened in 
                  other markets; 
 
         o        The Suzuki  franchise  at our Lit hia  Foothills  Auto Plaza in 
                  Colorado was sold,  leaving  Chry sler/Plymouth,  Dodge,  Dodge 
                  Truck, Jeep and Hyundai brands; 
 
         o        The Jeep,  Mitsubishi and Kia fra nchises in Sioux Falls, South 
                  Dakota  were  sold,  leaving  a  Chevrolet  store and a Subaru 
                  store; and 
 
         o        The Lithia Toyota Lincoln Mercury  franchise in Medford, Oregon 
                  was split with Toyota moving to i ts own new facility. 
 
         NEW VEHICLE SALES. In 2000, Lithia sold 26  domestic and imported brands 
ranging from economy to luxury cars, sport utility vehicles,  minivans and light 
trucks.  The following table sets forth, by manufac turer,  the percentage of new 
vehicle sales by Lithia during 2000. 
 
 
 
                                       New Vehicle Sales     Percentage of New 
                                      as a Percenta ge of   Vehicle Dollar Sales 
Manufacturer                              Total Sal es             in 2000 
------------------------------------  ------------- ----------------------------- 
DaimlerChrysler (Chrysler, 
Plymouth, Dodge, Jeep, Dodge Trucks)           21.4 %                 39.5% 
Ford (Ford, Lincoln, Mercury)                  9.0                   16.7 
General Motors (Chevrolet, Saturn)             6.0                   11.0 
Toyota                                         4.8                    8.8 



Volkswagen, Audi                               3.1                    5.8 
Nissan                                         2.3                    4.3 
Subaru                                         1.8                    3.3 
Honda (Acura, Honda)                           1.5                    2.7 
Isuzu                                          1.2                    2.2 
BMW                                            1.1                    2.1 
Hyundai                                        0.8                    1.5 
Mazda                                          0.4                    0.7 
Suzuki                                         0.3                    0.6 
Volvo                                          0.2                    0.3 
Daewoo                                         0.1                    0.2 
Kia                                            0.1                    0.2 
Mitsubishi                                     0.0                    0.1 
                                      ------------- -------  -------------------- 
                                              54.1%                  100.0% 
                                      ============= =======  ==================== 
 
 
The  following  table sets forth  Lithia's unit and  dollar sales of new vehicles 
for each of the past five years: 
 
 
 
 
(dollars in thousands)        1996         1997          1998           1999          2000 
----------------------    ----------    ---------    -----------    ----------    ----------- 
New units                     3,274        7,493         17,708        28,645         37,230 
New vehicle sales           $65,092     $161,294       $388,431      $673,339       $898,016 
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Lithia  purchases  substantially  all of its new  c ar  inventory  directly  from 
manufacturers  who  allocate  new  vehicles  to  st ores  based on the  amount of 
vehicles sold by the store and by the store's marke t area. Lithia also exchanges 
vehicles  with  other  dealers  to  accommodate  cu stomer  demand and to balance 
inventory. 
 
As is  customary  in the  automobile  industry,  th e final  sales price of a new 
vehicle is generally  negotiated with the customer.   However, at Lithia's Saturn 
stores, the final sales price does not deviate from  the posted price. 
 
         USED VEHICLE  SALES.  Used vehicle  sales are an important  part of our 
overall  profitability.  Lithia  retains a used  ve hicle  manager at each of its 
locations. 
 
Lithia acquires the majority of its used vehicles  through  customer  trade-ins, 
but also acquires them at "closed"  auctions,  whic h may be attended only by new 
vehicle  dealers with  franchises for the brands  o ffered.  These auctions offer 
off-lease,  rental and fleet vehicles.  Lithia also  acquires  vehicles at "open" 
auctions,  which offer  repossessed  vehicles and  vehicles  being sold by other 
dealers. 
 
Lithia sells used vehicles to retail  customers  an d, in the case of vehicles in 
poor  condition,  or vehicles  that have not sold  within a specified  period of 
time, to other dealers and to wholesalers. 
 
The following  table sets forth  Lithia's unit and dollar sales of used vehicles 
for each of the past five years: 
 
 
 
(dollars in thousands)          1996         1997          1998         1999          2000 
-------------------------    ----------   --------- -    ----------   -----------   ---------- 
Retail used units               4,156         7,148         13,645        23,840       30,896 



Retail used sales            $ 48,697       $88,571       $174,223      $313,449     $406,244 
 
Wholesale used units            2,348         4,990          9,532        13,424       16,751 
Wholesale used sales          $ 9,914      $ 24,528        $46,321       $62,113      $74,602 
 
Total used units                6,504        12,138         23,177        37,264       47,647 
Total used sales             $ 58,611      $113,099       $220,544      $375,562     $480,846 
 
 
         VEHICLE FINANCING AND LEASING. Lithia beli eves that the availability of 
financing  at its  stores  is  critical  to its  ab ility  to sell  vehicles  and 
ancillary  products and  services.  Lithia  provide s a variety of financing  and 
leasing alternatives to meet the needs of each cust omer.  We believe our ability 
to offer  customer-tailored  financing on a "same d ay" basis provides us with an 
advantage over many of our competitors,  particular ly smaller competitors who do 
not generate  sufficient  volume to attract the  di versity of financing  sources 
that are available to us. 
 
Because of the high profit margins that are typical ly generated through sales of 
finance and insurance  ("F&I")  products,  Lithia s eeks to arrange financing 
for every vehicle it sells. We have arranged  finan cing for a larger  percentage 
of our transactions than the industry  average.  Du ring 2000, Lithia financed or 
arranged  financing  for over 73% of its new  vehic le  sales and 72% of its used 
vehicle  sales,  compared  to an industry  average of 49% and 59%,  respectively 
(latest 2000 data). 
 
                                       7 
 
 
Lithia maintains close  relationships  with a wide variety of financing  sources 
that are best  suited  to  satisfy  its  customers'   particular  needs  and that 
maximize income. The interest rates available and t he required down payment,  if 
any, depend to a large extent, upon the bank or oth er institution  providing the 
financing and the credit history of the particular customer. 
 
Lithia generally  arranges  financing for its custo mers from third party sources 
to avoid  the  risk of  default.  However,  if we  believe  the  credit  risk is 
manageable,  we  occasionally  directly  finance  o r lease  the  vehicle  to the 
customer. In these cases, we bear the risk of defau lt. Historically,  Lithia has 
directly financed only a limited number of vehicle sales. 
 
         SERVICE, BODY AND PARTS. We consider our a uto service,  body, paint and 
parts  operations to be an integral part of our cus tomer  service program and an 
important element of establishing  customer  loyalt y.  Lithia provides parts and 
service  primarily  for the new  vehicle  brands so ld by its stores but may also 
service other vehicles.  In 2000,  Lithia's  servic e,  body and parts operations 
generated $164.0 million in revenues,  or 9.9% of t otal revenues.  Lithia uses a 
variable pricing structure designed to reflect the difficulty and sophistication 
of  different  types  of  repairs  and  the  cost  and  availability  of  parts. 
Additionally,  Lithia offers a lifetime lube, oil a nd filter  service,  which is 
purchased by 30% of its new and used vehicle  buyer s.  This service helps retain 
customers,   and  provides  opportunities  for  inc remental  parts  and  service 
business. 
 
The service,  body and parts business  provides an important  recurring  revenue 
stream to the stores. Lithia markets its parts and service products by notifying 
the owners of vehicles  purchased at its stores whe n their  vehicles are due for 
periodic service.  This practice encourages  preven tive  maintenance rather than 
post-breakdown repairs. To a limited extent, revenu es from the service, body and 
parts  departments  are  counter-cyclical  to new c ar  sales  as  owners  repair 
existing  vehicles rather than buy new vehicles.  W e believe this helps mitigate 
the effects of a downturn in the new vehicle sales cycle. 
 
Lithia operates ten collision  repair centers,  two  in Oregon,  two in Idaho and 
one each in California, Washington, Colorado, Nevad a, South Dakota and Alaska. 
 



ANCILLARY  SERVICES AND PRODUCTS.  Lithia's  F&I ma nagers market a number of 
ancillary  products  and services to every  purchas er of a new or used  vehicle. 
Typically,  these products and services yield high profit margins and contribute 
significantly to Lithia's overall profitability. 
 
Lithia sells third-party extended-service contracts , which cover many designated 
repairs.  While all new  vehicles  are sold with th e  automobile  manufacturer's 
standard  warranty,  service plans provide  additio nal  coverage beyond the time 
frame or scope of the manufacturer's  warranty.  Pu rchasers of used vehicles can 
purchase similar extended-service contracts. 
 
We also offer our customers credit life, health and  accident insurance when they 
finance an  automobile  purchase.  Lithia  receives  a commission  on each policy 
sold. We also offer other  ancillary  products  suc h as protective  coatings and 
automobile alarms. 
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SALES AND MARKETING 
 
We believe that our "Priority You" program describe d earlier helps differentiate 
us from many other stores,  thereby  increasing  cu stomer traffic and developing 
stronger  customer  loyalty.  Lithia also defines  itself as "America's  Car and 
Truck Store." 
 
Advertising  and  marketing  play a  significant  r ole in our  success.  A large 
portion of an auto retailers'  advertising  and mar keting  expenses are provided 
for by the automobile manufacturers.  The manufactu rers also provide Lithia with 
market  research,  which assists  Lithia in develop ing its own  advertising  and 
marketing campaigns. 
 
Lithia utilizes most forms of media in its advertis ing, including television, an 
internet web site,  newspaper,  radio and direct ma il,  which includes  periodic 
mailers to previous customers. Lithia uses advertis ing to develop its image as a 
reputable dealer, offering quality service, afforda ble automobiles and financing 
for all buyers. In addition,  Lithia's individual s tores sponsor price discounts 
or other promotions designed to attract customers. By owning a cluster of stores 
in a particular  market, we can save money from vol ume discounts and other media 
concessions.  Lithia also  participates  as a membe r of a number of  advertising 
cooperatives and  associations  whose members pool their resources and expertise 
together with those of the manufacturer to develop advertising campaigns. 
 
Lithia has  dedicated  resources  to  developing  a nd  maintaining  its web site 
(www.lithia.com).  We believe  that our web site is  a  valuable  lead-generation 
tool and information source for our customers. A vi sitor to Lithia's web site is 
able to do the following at each of Lithia's locati ons: 
 
         o        View new and used vehicle invento ry; 
 
         o        Schedule service appointments; 
 
         o        View Kelley Blue Book values; 
 
         o        View the NADA Value Guide; 
 
         o        Visit our investor relations site ; and 
 
         o        View employment opportunities 
 
We believe that regional and national auto retailer s,  such as Lithia,  are best 
positioned to take advantage of the internet as an effective marketing tool. 
 
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION SYSTEM 
 
Lithia's  financial  information,  operational  and   accounting  data, and other 



related  statistical  information are consolidated,   processed and maintained at 
its  headquarters  in  Medford,  Oregon,  on a  net work  of  computers  and work 
stations.  Senior management is able to access deta iled  information from all of 
its locations regarding: 
 
         o        inventory; 
 
         o        cash balances; 
 
         o        total unit sales and mix of new a nd used vehicle sales; 
 
         o        lease and finance transactions; 
 
         o        sales of ancillary products and s ervices; 
 
         o        key cost items and profit margins ; and 
 
         o        the relative performance of the s tores. 
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Each store's  general  manager can also access the same  information.  With this 
information,  management can quickly analyze the re sults of operations, identify 
trends  in  the  business,   and  focus  on  areas  that  require  attention  or 
improvement.  We believe that our management  infor mation system also allows our 
general  managers  to quickly  respond to changes i n  consumer  preferences  and 
purchasing patterns, thereby maximizing inventory t urnover. 
 
We  believe  that  our  management   information  s ystem  is  a  key  factor  in 
successfully   incorporating   newly   acquired   b usinesses.   Following   each 
acquisition,  Lithia immediately  installs its mana gement  information system at 
the store location,  thereby quickly making the fin ancial,  accounting and other 
operational data easily accessible  throughout the organization.  With access to 
such data,  management can more efficiently  execut e Lithia's operating strategy 
at the newly acquired store. 
 
RELATIONSHIPS WITH AUTOMOBILE MANUFACTURERS 
 
Lithia, through its subsidiaries, has entered into franchise or dealer sales and 
service agreements with each manufacturer of the ne w vehicles it sells. 
 
The typical  automobile  franchise  agreement  spec ifies the locations  within a 
designated  market  area at which  the  dealer  may  sell  vehicles  and  related 
products and perform certain  approved  services.  The designation of such areas 
and the allocation of new vehicles among stores are  subject to the discretion of 
the  manufacturer,  which  (except for Saturn)  doe s not  guarantee  exclusivity 
within a specified territory. 
 
A franchise  agreement may impose  requirements  on  the dealer  concerning  such 
matters as: 
 
         o        the showroom; 
 
         o        service facilities and equipment;  
 
         o        inventories of vehicles and parts ; 
 
         o        minimum working capital; 
 
         o        training of personnel; and 
 
         o        performance  standards  regarding   sales  volume and  customer 
                  satisfaction. 
 
Each  manufacturer  closely  monitors  compliance  with these  requirements  and 



requires  each  store to submit  monthly  and  annu al  financial  statements  of 
operations.  The franchise  agreements  also grant the dealer the  non-exclusive 
right to use and display manufacturers' trademarks,  service marks and designs in 
the form and manner approved by each manufacturer. 
 
Most franchise  agreements expire after a specified  period of time, ranging from 
one to five years;  however,  some franchise  agree ments,  including  those with 
Chrysler, have no termination date. Each franchise agreement authorizes at least 
one person to manage the store's  operations.  The typical  franchise  agreement 
provides for early termination or non-renewal by th e manufacturer if there is: 
 
         o        a change  of  management  or  own ership  without  manufacturer 
                  consent; 
 
         o        insolvency or bankruptcy of the s tore; 
 
         o        death or incapacity of the dealer  manager; 
 
         o        conviction of a dealer manager or  owner of certain crimes; 
 
         o        misrepresentation  of certain inf ormation by the store, dealer 
                  manager or owner to the manufactu rer; 
 
         o        failure to adequately operate the  store; 
 
         o        failure  to  maintain  any  licen se,  permit or  authorization 
                  required for the conduct of busin ess; or 
 
         o        poor sales performance or low cus tomer satisfaction index. 
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However, state franchise laws significantly limit t he ability of manufactures to 
cancel or terminate automotive dealership franchise s. 
 
Lithia  has  entered  into  master   framework   ag reements  with  most  of  its 
manufacturers that impose additional  requirements on its stores. See Exhibit 99 
"Risk Factors" for further details. 
 
COMPETITION 
 
The automobile business is highly competitive.  The  automobile store industry is 
fragmented and characterized by a large number of i ndependent operators, many of 
whom are individuals,  families,  and small groups.   Lithia principally competes 
with other  automobile  dealers,  both publicly and  privately  held, in the same 
general  vicinity of its store  locations.  In  add ition,  certain  regional and 
national car rental  companies  operate retail used  car lots to dispose of their 
used rental cars. 
 
REGULATION 
 
Lithia's  operations  are  subject  to  extensive  regulation,  supervision  and 
licensing  under  various  federal,  state and loca l  statutes,  ordinances  and 
regulations.  Various  state  and  federal  regulat ory  agencies,  such  as  the 
Occupational  Safety  and  Health  Administration  and  the  U.S.  Environmental 
Protection  Agency,  have  jurisdiction  over the o peration of Lithia's  stores, 
service centers,  collision repair shops and other  operations,  with respect to 
matters such as consumer  protection,  workers'  sa fety and laws regarding clean 
air and water. 
 
The  relationship  between a franchised  automobile   store and a manufacturer is 
governed by various  federal and state laws  establ ished  to protect stores from 
the generally unequal  bargaining power between the  parties.  A manufacturer may 
not: 
 



         o        terminate or fail to renew a fran chise without good cause; or 
 
         o        prevent any reasonable changes in  the capital structure or the 
                  manner in which a store is financ ed. 
 
Manufacturers  may object to a sale or change of ma nagement  based on character, 
financial ability or business experience of the pro posed transferee. 
 
Automobile  dealers and  manufacturers  are also su bject to various  federal and 
state laws established to protect consumers, includ ing so-called "Lemon Laws." A 
manufacturer  must  replace a new vehicle or accept  it for a full refund  within 
one year  after  initial  purchase  if: 
 
         o        the  vehicle  does not conform to  the  manufacturer's  express 
                  warranties; and 
 
         o        the  dealer  or  manufacturer,  a fter a  reasonable  number of 
                  attempts, is unable to correct or  repair the defect. 
 
We must  provide  written  disclosures  on new  veh icles  of mileage and pricing 
information.  In addition,  financing  and insuranc e  activities  are subject to 
credit reporting, debt collection, and insurance in dustry regulation. 
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Lithia's business,  particularly parts, service and  collision repair operations, 
involves  hazardous or toxic  substances or wastes.   Lithia has been required to 
remove storage tanks  containing such substances or  wastes.  Federal,  state and 
local  authorities  establishing  health  and  envi ronmental  quality  standards 
regulate the handling and storage of  hazardous  ma terials.  These  governmental 
authorities  also regulate  remediation of  contami nated  sites,  which could be 
Lithia  facilities or sites to which Lithia sends h azardous or toxic  substances 
or wastes for treatment,  recycling or disposal.  W e believe that we do not have 
any material  environmental  liabilities and that c ompliance with  environmental 
regulations  will not have a  material  adverse  ef fect on  Lithia's  results of 
operations or financial condition. 
 
EMPLOYEES 
 
As of December 31, 2000, we employed  approximately  3,400 persons on a full-time 
equivalent  basis. The service  department  employe es at Lithia Dodge and Lithia 
Ford of  Concord  and  Lithia  Volkswagen  and  Isu zu of  Concord  are  bound by 
collective   bargaining   agreements.   The  Compan y  believes  it  has  a  good 
relationship with its employees. 
 
 
 
 
Item 2.  PROPERTIES 
------   ---------- 
 
Lithia's stores and other facilities consist primar ily of automobile  showrooms, 
display lots, service  facilities,  ten collision r epair and paint shops, rental 
agencies, supply facilities,  automobile storage lo ts, parking lots and offices. 
We believe our facilities  are currently  adequate for our needs and are in good 
repair.  Lithia  owns  some  of its  properties,  b ut  leases  many  properties, 
providing  future  flexibility  to relocate  its re tail  stores as  demographics 
change. Lithia also holds some undeveloped land for  future expansion. 
 
 
 
 
Item 3.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
-------  ----------------- 
 



Lithia is a party to litigation that arises in the normal course of its business 
operations.  We do not believe that we are presentl y a party to litigation  that 
will have a material adverse effect on our business  or operations. 
 
 
 
 
Item 4.  SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURIT Y HOLDERS 
-------  ------------------------------------------ --------- 
 
No matters were submitted to a vote of Lithia's  sh areholders during the quarter 
ended December 31, 2000. 
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                                     PART II 
 
 
 
Item 5.   MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND  RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
-------   ----------------------------------------- ---------------------------- 
 
Lithia's  Class A Common Stock began  trading on th e New York Stock  Exchange on 
January 22, 1999 under the symbol LAD.  From the ti me of the  Company's  initial 
public  offering in December 1996 until the move to  the New York Stock Exchange, 
the Class A Common Stock traded on the Nasdaq  Nati onal  Market under the symbol 
LMTR.  The  quarterly  high and low sales prices of  the Class A Common Stock for 
the period from January 1, 1999 through December 31 , 2000 were as follows: 
 
 
 
1999                                             Hi gh         Low 
--------------------------------------------    --- -----     ------- 
Quarter 1                                    $   20 .50   $    15.00 
Quarter 2                                        20 .50        15.13 
Quarter 3                                        23 .56        17.75 
Quarter 4                                        22 .94        15.75 
 
2000 
-------------------------------------------- 
Quarter 1                                    $   18 .19   $    13.00 
Quarter 2                                        17 .13        11.63 
Quarter 3                                        13 .50        11.75 
Quarter 4                                        14 .13        11.38 
 
 
The  number of  shareholders  of record  and  appro ximate  number of  beneficial 
holders  of Class A Common  Stock at  February  28,   2001 was  1,693  and  2,025 
respectively.  All shares of  Lithia's  Class B Com mon  Stock are held by Lithia 
Holding Company LLC. 
 
DIVIDENDS 
 
There were no cash  dividends  declared or paid in the last two fiscal years and 
Lithia does not intend to declare or pay cash  divi dends  in the future.  Lithia 
intends to retain any earnings  that it may realize  in the future to finance its 
acquisitions and operations. The payment of any fut ure dividends will be subject 
to the  discretion  of the Board of  Directors  and  will  depend  upon  Lithia's 
results of  operations,  financial  position and ca pital  requirements,  general 
business conditions, restrictions imposed by financ ing arrangements, if any, and 
legal  restrictions on the payment of dividends.  L ithia's  agreements with Ford 



Motor Credit Company  preclude the payment of cash  dividends  without the prior 
consent of Ford Credit. 
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Item 6.  SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
-------  ----------------------- 
                                                      Year Ended December 31, 
                                      ------------- ------------------------------------------ 
(In thousands, except per share       1996 (1)     1997        1998        1999        2000 
  amounts) 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 
  OPERATIONS DATA: 
  Revenues: 
    New vehicles                      $ 65,092   $           $388,431    $           $898,016 
                                                  1 61,294                 673,339 
    Used vehicles                       58,611    1 13,099     220,544     375,562     480,846 
    Service, body and parts             13,197     29,828      72,216     120,722     164,002 
    Other revenues                       5,944     15,574      33,549      73,036     115,747 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
      Total revenues                   142,844    3 19,795     714,740    1,242,659   1,658,611 
  Cost of sales                        117,025    2 65,049     599,379    1,043,373   1,391,042 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
  Gross profit                          25,819     54,746     115,361     199,286     267,569 
  Selling, general and                  19,830     40,625      85,188     146,381     195,500 
  administrative 
  Depreciation and amortization          1,756      2,483       3,469       5,573       7,605 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
  Income from operations                 4,233     11,638      26,704      47,332      64,464 
  Floorplan interest expense             (697)    ( 2,179)     (7,108)    (11,105)    (17,728) 
  Other interest expense                 (656)      (824)     (2,735)     (4,250)     (7,917) 
  Other income, net                      1,349        862         921          74         716 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
  Income before minority interest 
  and income taxes                       4,229      9,497      17,782      32,051      39,535 
  Minority interest                      (687)          -           -           -           - 
                                                 -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
                                      --------   -- ------ 
  Income before income taxes (1)         3,542      9,497      17,782      32,051      39,535 
  Income tax (expense) benefit             813    ( 3,538)     (6,993)    (12,877)    (15,222) 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
  Net income                          $  4,355    $  5,959    $ 10,789    $19,174    $ 24,313 
                                      ========   == ======    ========    ========    ======== 
PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 
  OF OPERATIONS DATA: 
  Income before taxes and 
  minority interest, as reported      $  4,229 
  Pro forma provision for taxes (2)    (1,623) 
                                      -------- 
  Pro forma net income                $  2,606 
                                      ======== 
Basic net income per share (3)         $  0.56    $   0.85     $  1.18     $  1.72     $  1.95 
                                      ========   == ======    ========    ========    ======== 
Shares used in basic net income          4,657      6,988       9,147      11,137      12,447 
  per share 
                                      ========   == ======    ========    ========    ======== 
Diluted net income per share (3)       $  0.52    $   0.82     $  1.14     $  1.60     $  1.76 
                                      ========   == ======    ========    ========    ======== 
Shares used in diluted net income 



  per share                              4,973      7,303       9,470      11,998      13,804 
                                      ========   == ======    ========    ========    ======== 
 
                                                        As of December 31, 
                                      ------------- ------------------------------------------ 
(In thousands)                        1996 (1)     1997        1998        1999        2000 
                                      --------   -- ------    --------    --------    -------- 
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA: 
  Working capital                     $ 25,431   $ 23,870    $ 53,553    $ 74,999    $ 98,917 
  Total assets                          68,964    1 66,526     294,398     506,433     628,003 
  Short-term debt                       22,000     85,385     132,310     215,535     260,479 
  Long-term debt, less current           6,160     26,558      41,420      73,911     131,586 
  maturities 
  Total shareholders' equity            27,914     37,877      91,511     155,638     181,775 
 
 
(1)      Effective  January 1, 1997, the Company  c onverted from the LIFO method 
         of accounting for inventories to the FIFO method. Accordingly, the 1996 
         data has been  restated to reflect this ch ange.  See Note 1 of Notes to 
         Consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
(2)      The Company was an S  Corporation  and  ac cordingly  was not subject to 
         federal  and state  income  taxes  during  1996.  Pro forma net  income 
         reflects  federal and state income taxes a s if the Company had been a C 
         Corporation,  based on the  effective tax rates that would have been in 
         effect  during 1996. 
 
(3)      The per share amounts are pro forma for 19 96 and actual for 1997, 1998, 
         1999 and 2000. 
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Item 7.   MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF F INANCIAL CONDITION 
          AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
-------   ----------------------------------------- ----------------------------- 
 
 
 
GENERAL 
 
In 2000,  Lithia generated  record  revenues,  EBIT DA (earnings before interest, 
taxes, depreciation and amortization), net income a nd unit sales of new and used 
vehicles as follows (dollars in thousands): 
 
                                      2000            1999          % Increase 
                                   -------------   -------------   --------------- 
Revenues                            $1,658,611      $1,242,659           33.5% 
EBITDA                                 $72,785         $52,979           37.4% 
Cash flow from operations              $36,287         $22,381           62.1% 
Net income                             $24,313         $19,174           26.8% 
Unit sales: 
  New                                   37,230          28,645           30.0% 
  Retail used                           30,896          23,840           29.6% 
 
 
The following  table shows  selected  condensed  fi nancial  data  expressed as a 
percentage  of  total  revenues  for  the  periods  indicated  for  the  average 
automotive dealer in the United States. 
 
 
 
Average U.S. Store                                     Year Ended December 31, 



                                                    ---------------------------- 
Statement of Operations Data:                          2000        1999 
                                                    ---------     ------- 
Revenues: 
     New vehicles                                     60.0 %        59.9 % 
     Used vehicles                                    28.6          28.9 
     Parts and service, other                         11.4          11.2 
                                                    -------       ------- 
                                                     100.0 %       100.0 % 
       Total sales 
Gross profit                                          12.7          12.6 
Total store expense                                   11.2          10.8 
Income before taxes                                    1.6 %         1.8 % 
 
 
Source: NADA Industry Analysis Division 
 
The following  table sets forth  selected  condense d  financial  data for Lithia 
expressed as a percentage of total revenues for the  periods indicated below. 
 
 
 
Lithia Motors, Inc.                                        Year Ended December 31, 
-----------------------------------------------   - ----------------------------------------- 
                                                     2000            1999           1998 
                                                  - -----------    -----------    ----------- 
Revenues: 
  New vehicles                                        54.1%          54.2%          54.3% 
  Used vehicles                                       29.0%          30.2%          30.9% 
  Service, body and parts                              9.9%           9.7%          10.1% 
  Other                                                7.0%           5.9%           4.7% 
                                                  - -----------    -----------    ----------- 
    Total revenues                                   100.0%         100.0%         100.0% 
Gross profit                                          16.1%          16.0%          16.1% 
Selling, general and administrative expenses          11.8%          11.8%          11.9% 
Depreciation and amortization                          0.5%           0.4%           0.5% 
Income from operations                                 3.9%           3.8%           3.7% 
Floorplan interest expense                             1.1%           0.9%           1.0% 
Other interest expense                                 0.5%           0.3%           0.4% 
Other, net                                             0.0%           0.0%           0.1% 
Income before tax                                      2.4%           2.6%           2.5% 
Income tax expense                                     0.9%           1.0%           1.0% 
Net income                                             1.5%           1.5%           1.5% 
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - 2000 COMPARED TO 1999 
 
 
 
                                             Year E nded                             % 
                                            Decembe r 31,          Increase       Increase 
                                       ------------ ----------- 
                                         2000         1999        (Decrease)    (Decrease) 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Revenues: 
  New vehicle sales                    $898,016      $673,339      $224,677          33.4% 
  Used vehicle sales                    480,846       375,562       105,284         28.0 
  Service, body and parts               164,002       120,722        43,280         35.9 
  Other revenues                        115,747        73,036        42,711         58.5 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
    Total revenues                     1,658,611    1,242,659       415,952         33.5 



Cost of sales                          1,391,042    1,043,373       347,669         33.3 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Gross profit                            267,569       199,286        68,283         34.3 
Selling, general and                    195,500       146,381        49,119         33.6 
  administrative 
Depreciation and amortization             7,605         5,573         2,032         36.5 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Income from operations                   64,464        47,332        17,132         36.2 
Floorplan interest expense              (17,728)      (11,105)        6,623         59.6 
Other interest expense                   (7,917)       (4,250)        3,667         86.3 
Other, net                                  716            74           642        867.6 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Income before income taxes               39,535        32,051         7,484         23.4 
Income tax expense                      (15,222)      (12,877)        2,345         18.2 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Net income                              $24,313       $19,174       $ 5,139          26.8% 
                                       =========    ==========    ==========    =========== 
 
New units sold                           37,230        28,645         8,585          30.0% 
Average selling price                   $24,121       $23,506          $615           2.6% 
Used units sold - retail                 30,896        23,840         7,056          29.6% 
Average selling price                   $13,149       $13,148            $1            - 
Used units sold - wholesale              16,751        13,424         3,327          24.8% 
Average selling price                    $4,454        $4,627        $(173)         (3.7)% 
 
 
REVENUES.  Same store retail sales  increased 1.1% in 2000 compared to 1999. The 
increases  in  units  sold  and  revenue  from  all   sources  are  a  result  of 
acquisitions and internal growth. 
 
GROSS PROFIT.  Gross profit increased  primarily du e to increased total revenues 
and increased  other  revenues as a percentage of t otal  revenues.  Gross profit 
margins achieved in 2000 and 1999 were as follows: 
 
 
 
                             2000                                              Lithia 
                             Industry        Lithia           Lithia            Margin 
                             Average          2000            1999             Change 
                             ---------    --------- ----   -------------   ----------------- 
New vehicles                   6.1%            9.0%             8.7%           +30 bp* 
Retail used vehicles          10.9%           13.6%            12.8%           +80 bp 
Service and parts               n/a           44.9%            44.8%           +10 bp 
Overall                       12.7%           16.1%            16.0%           +10 bp 
 
 
*bp stands for basis point (ten basis points equals  one-tenth of one percent) 
 
The increases in the gross profit  margins are prim arily a result of operational 
improvements at its newly acquired stores, as the L ithia model was implemented. 
 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE. Sellin g, general and administrative 
expense  increased  due  primarily to increased  se lling,  or variable,  expense 
related to the increase in revenues and the number of total locations.  Selling, 
general and administrative  expense, as a percentag e of revenue, remain constant 
in 2000 compared to 1999. 
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DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION.  Depreciation and am ortization  expense increased 
primarily as a result of increased  property and eq uipment and goodwill  related 
to acquisitions in 1999 and 2000. 
 
INCOME FROM  OPERATIONS.  Operating  margins  impro ved ten basis points,  or one 
tenth  of one  percent,  in 2000  compared  to  199 9.  In  addition  to  gaining 



efficiencies  related to economies of scale, Lithia  has seen improvements in the 
operating  margins at stores that it has  acquired and operated for a full year, 
bringing them more in line with its pre-existing st ores. 
 
FLOORPLAN  INTEREST EXPENSE.  Seventy-five  percent  of the increase in floorplan 
interest expense is due to additional  flooring not es payable as a result of new 
inventory from  acquisitions.  Twenty-five  percent  of the increase is due to an 
overall rise in borrowing rates during 2000. 
 
OTHER INTEREST  EXPENSE.  Eighty percent of the inc rease in interest  expense is 
due to higher debt  levels as a result of  acquisit ions.  Twenty  percent of the 
increase is due to an overall rise in borrowing rat es during 2000. 
 
INCOME TAX EXPENSE. Lithia's effective tax rate dec lined to 38.5 percent in 2000 
from 40.2 percent in 1999 as a result of an increas ing mix of asset acquisitions 
compared to corporate  acquisitions  and the  incre ased  weighting of deductible 
goodwill,  as well as an  increase  in the mix of s tates  with lower or no state 
income taxes. 
 
NET INCOME. Net income increased  primarily as a re sult of increased revenues as 
discussed above. 
 
 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS - 1999 COMPARED TO 1998 
 
                                             Year E nded 
                                            Decembe r 31,                            % 
                                       ------------ -----------     Increase      Increase 
                                         1999         1998        (Decrease)    (Decrease) 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Revenues: 
  New vehicle sales                    $673,339      $388,431      $284,908         73.3% 
  Used vehicle sales                    375,562       220,544       155,018         70.3 
  Service, body and parts               120,722        72,216        48,506         67.2 
  Other revenues                         73,036        33,549        39,487        117.7 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
    Total revenues                     1,242,659      714,740       527,919         73.9 
Cost of sales                          1,043,373      599,379       443,994         74.1 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Gross profit                            199,286       115,361        83,925         72.8 
Selling, general and                    146,381        85,188        61,193         71.8 
  administrative 
Depreciation and amortization             5,573         3,469         2,104         60.7 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Income from operations                   47,332        26,704        20,628         77.2 
Floorplan interest expense              (11,105)       (7,108)        3,997         56.2 
Other interest expense                   (4,250)       (2,735)        1,515         55.4 
Other, net                                   74           921          (847)       (92.0) 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Income before income taxes               32,051        17,782        14,269         80.2 
Income tax expense                      (12,877)       (6,993)        5,884         84.1 
                                       ---------    ----------    ----------    ----------- 
Net income                              $19,174       $10,789       $ 8,385         77.7% 
                                       =========    ==========    ==========    =========== 
 
New units sold                           28,645        17,708        10,937         61.8% 
Average selling price                   $23,506       $21,935        $1,571          7.2% 
Used units sold                          23,840        13,645        10,195         74.7% 
Average selling price                   $13,148       $12,768          $380          3.0% 
Used units sold - wholesale              13,424         9,532         3,892         40.8% 
Average selling price                    $4,627        $4,860         $(233)        (4.8)% 
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REVENUES.  Same store sales  growth was 6.9% in 199 9,  with a 17.8%  increase in 
same store finance and insurance  revenue.  Same st ore sales growth was 14.7% in 
1998.  The  increases in units sold and revenue fro m all sources are a result of 
acquisitions and internal growth. 
 
GROSS PROFIT.  Gross profit  increased  primarily  due to increased  revenues as 
indicated above. Gross profit margins achieved in 1 999 and 1998 were as follows: 
 
 
 
                                     1999                                         Lithia 
                                   Industry         Lithia         Lithia         Margin 
                                   Average           1999           1998          Change 
                                 -------------   -- ----------    ----------    ------------ 
       New vehicles                   6.4%           8.7%           8.9%          -20 bp* 
       Retail used vehicles          10.7%          12.8%          12.7%          +10 bp 
       Service and parts               n/a          44.8%          45.5%          -70 bp 
       Overall                       12.6%          16.0%          16.1%          -10 bp 
 
 
*bp stands for basis point  (ten basis points equal s one-tenth of one percent) 
 
The decrease in the new vehicle gross profit  perce ntage is primarily due to the 
mix of stores  added due to  acquisitions.  These  stores  have  lower  selling, 
general and  administrative  costs as a  percentage   of revenues  than  Lithia's 
preexisting  stores,  lending  themselves to a high  volume, low cost strategy of 
retailing vehicles.  The increase in the retail use d vehicle gross profit margin 
is primarily due to improved  inventory  management  company wide and operational 
improvements at its newly acquired stores, as the L ithia model was implemented. 
 
SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE. Sellin g, general and administrative 
expense ("SG&A")  increased due primarily to increa sed selling, or variable, 
expense  related to the increase in revenues and th e number of total  locations. 
The decrease in SG&A as a percent of total revenues  is a result of economies 
of scale gained as the fixed  expenses are spread o ver a larger revenue base and 
from  economies  of scale as  Lithia  consolidates  multiple  stores in a single 
market. 
 
DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION.  Depreciation and am ortization  expense increased 
primarily as a result of increased  property and eq uipment and goodwill  related 
to acquisitions in 1999 and 1998. 
 
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS. In addition to gaining effi ciencies related to economies 
of scale,  Lithia has seen  improvements in the ope rating margins at stores that 
it has acquired and  operated for a full year,  bri nging  them more in line with 
its pre-existing stores. 
 
FLOORPLAN INTEREST EXPENSE.  Floorplan interest exp ense increased as a result of 
increased flooring notes payable related to increas ed inventories as a result of 
the increase in stores owned and vehicles  sold.  L ithia was been able to reduce 
its floorplan interest expense as a percentage of t otal revenues by successfully 
managing inventory levels. 
 
NET INCOME. Net income increased as a result of the  individual line item changes 
discussed above. 
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
Lithia's  principal needs for capital resources are  to finance  acquisitions and 



capital  expenditures,  as  well  as for  working  capital.  Lithia  has  relied 
primarily upon internally generated cash flows from  operations, borrowings under 
its credit  facilities and the proceeds from public  equity  offerings to finance 
its operations and expansion. 
 
In June 2000,  Lithia's  Board of Directors  author ized  the repurchase of up to 
1,000,000  shares of Lithia's Class A Common Stock.   Lithia has purchased shares 
under this  program and may continue to do so from time to time in the future as 
conditions warrant. 
 
In  December  2000,  Lithia's  existing  credit  fa cility  with Ford  Credit was 
increased by $130 million to a total of $580 millio n and the expiration date was 
extended to November 2003 with interest due monthly .  The facility includes $250 
million for new and program  vehicle  flooring,  $1 50  million for used  vehicle 
flooring,  $130 million for franchise  acquisitions   and $50 million in mortgage 
financing.  Lithia  also has the option to convert the  acquisition  line into a 
five-year term loan. 
 
The  lines  with  Ford  Credit  are  cross-collater alized  and  are  secured  by 
inventory,  accounts receivable,  intangible assets  and equipment. The other new 
vehicle lines are secured by new vehicle inventory of the relevant stores. 
 
The Ford Credit lines of credit contain financial  covenants requiring Lithia to 
maintain compliance with, among other things, speci fied ratios of (i) total debt 
to tangible  base  capital;  (ii) total  adjusted d ebt to tangible base capital; 
(iii) current  ratio;  (iv) fixed charge  coverage;   and (v) net cash.  The Ford 
Credit lines of credit  agreements  also preclude t he payment of cash  dividends 
without the prior consent of Ford Credit. Lithia wa s in compliance with all such 
covenants at December 31, 2000. 
 
Toyota Motor Credit  Corporation,  Chrysler  Financ ial  Corporation  and General 
Motors Acceptance  Corporation have agreed to floor  all of Lithia's new vehicles 
for their  respective  brands with Ford Credit serv ing as the primary lender for 
all  other  brands.  There are no formal  limits  t o these  commitments  for new 
vehicle wholesale financing. 
 
In  addition,  U.S.  Bank N.A. has extended a $27.5   million  revolving  line of 
credit for leased vehicles and equipment purchases.  
 
Interest  rates on all of the above  facilities  ra nged  from  7.90% to 9.15% at 
December 31, 2000. Amounts outstanding on the lines  at December 31, 2000 were as 
follows (in thousands): 
 
 
 
New and Program Vehicle Lines                      $255,137 
Used Vehicle Line                                    59,000 
Acquisition Line                                      8,000 
Equipment and Leased Vehicle Line                    27,500 
                                               ---- ----------- 
                                                   $349,637 
                                               ==== =========== 
 
 
The $9.0 million  related  party payable at Decembe r 31, 1999 was related to the 
additional purchase price for the Moreland acquisit ion as a result of contingent 
payouts that were earned  during 1999.  In addition  to the $9.0 million of cash, 
the Company accrued for the issuance of $4.5 millio n of its Class A Common Stock 
and $4.5 million redemption value of its Series M P referred Stock to satisfy the 
contingent  payout  requirements.  The cash was pai d and the stock was issued in 
the first quarter of 2000. 
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At December 31, 2000,  Lithia had capital  commitme nts  of  approximately  $14.9 



million for the construction of six new store facil ities, of which $14.2 million 
is anticipated  to be incurred  through the end of 2001 and the balance in 2002. 
Approximately  $2.7 million has already been paid o ut of existing cash balances. 
Lithia expects to pay for the  construction  out of  existing cash balances until 
completion of the projects,  at which time Lithia a nticipates securing long-term 
financing and general borrowings for 85% to 100% of  the amounts from third party 
lenders. 
 
SEASONALITY AND QUARTERLY FLUCTUATIONS 
 
Historically, Lithia's sales have been lower in the  first and fourth quarters of 
each year largely due to consumer purchasing patter ns during the holiday season, 
inclement  weather  and the reduced  number of busi ness  days during the holiday 
season.  As a result,  financial  performance  may be lower during the first and 
fourth  quarters than during the other quarters of each fiscal year.  Management 
believes that interest rates,  levels of consumer d ebt, consumer buying patterns 
and  confidence,  as well as general  economic  con ditions,  also  contribute to 
fluctuations  in sales and operating  results.  The  timing of  acquisitions  may 
cause substantial fluctuations of operating results  from quarter to quarter. 
 
RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
In June 2000, the FASB issued  Statement of Financi al  Accounting  Standards No. 
138,  "Accounting  for  Certain  Derivative   Instr uments  and  Certain  Hedging 
Activities-an  amendment of FASB Statement No. 133"  ("SFAS 138").  In June 1999, 
the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting S tandards No. 137, "Accounting 
for Derivative  Instruments and Hedging Activities"  ("SFAS 137"). SFAS 137 is an 
amendment to Statement of Financial  Accounting  St andards No. 133,  "Accounting 
for Derivative  Instruments and Hedging Activities" .  SFAS 137 and 138 establish 
accounting and reporting standards for all derivati ve instruments.  SFAS 137 and 
138 are effective for fiscal years  beginning  afte r June 15, 2000. The adoption 
of SFAS 137 and 138 in January 2001 resulted in the   recognition  of a liability 
of $1.5 million and a corresponding  charge to accu mulated  other  comprehensive 
income for the fair value of rate swapping agreemen ts. 
 
In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commi ssion issued Staff Accounting 
Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101").  SAB 101  summarized  certain areas of the Staff's 
views  in  applying   generally  accepted   account ing   principles  to  revenue 
recognition  in financial  statements.  In June 200 0,  SAB 101B was issued which 
defers  the  implementation   date  of  SAB  101  u ntil  October  1,  2000.  The 
implementation  of SAB 101 did not have a  signific ant  impact on the  Company's 
financial condition or results of operations. 
 
 
 
 
 
Item 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
--------  ----------------------------------------- ----------------- 
 
Lithia  has  variable  rate  floor  plan notes  pay able  and other  credit  line 
borrowings that subject it to market risk exposure.   At December 31, 2000 Lithia 
had $349.6 million  outstanding  under such facilit ies at interest rates ranging 
from 7.9% to 9.2% per annum. An increase or decreas e in the interest rates would 
affect interest expense for the period accordingly.  
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In order to reduce the  variability  of  interest  payments,  Lithia has fixed a 
portion of its interest expense by utilizing intere st rate swaps as follows: 
 
o        Effective  September  1, 2000,  Lithia  en tered  into a five year,  $25 
         million interest rate swap with U.S. Bank Dealer Commercial Services at 
         a fixed rate of 6.88% per annum. 
 



o        Effective  November  1, 2000  Lithia  ente red  into a three  year,  $25 
         million interest rate swap with U.S. Bank Dealer Commercial Services at 
         a fixed rate of 6.47% per annum. 
 
Lithia earns interest on both of the $25 million  i nterest rate swaps at the one 
month  LIBOR rate  adjusted  on the first and  sixt eenth  of every  month and is 
obligated  to pay  interest  at the fixed rate set for each swap (6.88% or 6.47% 
per annum) on the same amount.  The difference  bet ween  interest earned and the 
interest  obligation  accrued is  received or paid each month and is recorded in 
the  statement of  operations as interest  income o r interest  expense.  The one 
month LIBOR rate at December 31, 2000 was 6.56% per  annum. 
 
The fair value of interest rate swap agreements and  the amount of hedging losses 
deferred on interest  rate swaps was $1,542 at Dece mber 31, 2000. As of December 
31, 2000,  approximately  76% of Lithia's total deb t  outstanding was subject to 
un-hedged variable rates of interest. As a result, recent interest rate declines 
have  resulted in a net  reduction  of Lithia's  in terest  expense.  The Company 
intends to continue to  gradually  hedge its  inter est  rate  exposure if market 
rates continue to decline. 
 
 
 
 
Item 8.  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY FIN ANCIAL DATA 
-------  ------------------------------------------ ----------- 
 
The financial  statements and notes thereto  requir ed by this item begin on page 
F-1 as listed in Item 14 of Part IV of this documen t.  Quarterly  financial data 
for each of the eight quarters in the two-year peri od ended December 31, 2000 is 
as follows: 
 
 
 
In thousands, except per share 
data                               1st Quarter       2nd Quarter    3rd Quarter  4th Quarter 
-------------------------------    -----------       -----------    -----------  ----------- 
1999 
---- 
Total revenues                     $    224,145   $       307,753       357,369  $    353,392                                                                                    $
Gross profit                             35,200           48,786        57,245        58,055 
Income before income taxes                5,005            7,779         9,924         9,343 
Income taxes                              1,976            3,202         4,071         3,628 
Net income                                3,029            4,577         5,853         5,715 
Basic net income per share                 0.30             0.42          0.50          0.49 
Diluted net income per share               0.29             0.40          0.47          0.43 
 
2000 
---- 
Total revenues                     $    395,603   $       417,851       443,066  $    402,091                                                                                    $
Gross profit                             62,864           67,184        70,920        66,601 
Income before income taxes                8,415           10,500        11,806         8,814 
Income taxes                              3,451            4,306         4,283         3,182 
Net income                                4,964            6,194         7,523         5,632 
Basic net income per share                 0.40             0.50          0.60          0.45 
Diluted net income per share               0.37             0.45          0.55          0.41 
 
Item 9.   CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNT ANTS ON 
          ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
-------   ----------------------------------------- ----------------------------- 
None. 
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                                    PART III 
 
 
 
Item 10.  DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE R EGISTRANT 
--------  ----------------------------------------- --------- 
 
Information  required by this item is included  und er the  captions  Election of 
Directors,  Executive Officers and Section 16(a) Be neficial  Ownership Reporting 
Compliance,  respectively,  in the Company's Proxy Statement for its 2001 Annual 
Meeting of Shareholders and is incorporated herein by reference. 
 
 
 
 
Item 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 
--------  ---------------------- 
 
The  information  required by this item is included  under the caption  Executive 
Compensation  in the Company's  Proxy  Statement fo r its 2001 Annual  Meeting of 
Shareholders and is incorporated herein by referenc e. 
 
 
 
 
Item 12.  SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT 
--------  ----------------------------------------- --------------------- 
 
The  information  required by this item is included   under the caption  Security 
Ownership of Certain  Beneficial  Owners and  Manag ement in the Company's  Proxy 
Statement for its 2001 Annual Meeting of Shareholde rs and is incorporated herein 
by reference. 
 
 
 
 
Item 13.  CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS 
--------  ----------------------------------------- ----- 
 
The  information  required  by this item is include d  under the caption  Certain 
Relationships and Related  Transactions in the Comp any's  Information  Statement 
for its 2000  Annual  Meeting  of  Shareholders  an d is  incorporated  herein by 
reference. 
 
 
 
 
 
                                     PART IV 
 
 
 
Item 14.  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES A ND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 
--------  ----------------------------------------- ---------------------- 
 
(a) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES 
 
The Consolidated Financial Statements,  together wi th the report thereon of KPMG 
LLP, are included on the pages indicated below: 
 
                                                                           Page 
                                                                           ---- 
Independent Auditors' Report                                                F-1 



Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2000  and 1999                F-2 
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years  ended December 
  31, 2000, 1999 and 1998                                                   F-3 
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholders'  Equity - 
  December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998                                          F-4 
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years  ended December 
  31, 2000, 1999 and 1998                                                   F-5 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements                                  F-6 
 
There are no schedules required to be filed herewit h. 
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(b) REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 
 
The Company filed one report on Form 8-K during the  quarter  ended  December 31, 
2000 under Item 9. Regulation FD Disclosure, dated October 23, 2000, relating to 
Lithia's third quarter 2000 press release and confe rence call. 
 
 
 
(c) EXHIBITS 
 
The  following  exhibits  are  filed  herewith  and   this  list is  intended  to 
constitute the exhibit index: 
 
Exhibit      Description 
-------      ----------- 
 
3.1      (a)Restated  Articles  of  Incorporation  of Lithia  Motors,  Inc.,  as 
         amended May 13, 1999. 
 
3.2      (b)Bylaws of Lithia Motors, Inc. 
 
4        (b)Specimen Common Stock certificate 
 
10.1     (c)Agreement  and Plan of  Reorganization  dated January 1, 1999 by and 
         between Lithia Motors, Inc. and Cherry Cre ek Dodge Limited Partnership, 
         RLLLP and Cherry Creek Dodge, Incorporated . (1) 
 
10.2     (b)1996 Stock Incentive Plan 
 
 
10.2.1   (d)Amendment No. 1 to the Lithia Motors, I nc. 1996 Stock Incentive Plan 
 
 
 
10.3     (b)Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreemen t 
 
10.4     (b)Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agre ement 
 
10.5     (e)1997 Non-Discretionary Stock Option Pla n for Non-Employee Directors 
 
10.6     (f)Employee Stock Purchase Plan 
 
10.7     (a)Chrysler Corporation Sales and Service Agreement General Provisions 
 
 
10.7.1   (a)Chrysler  Corporation  Chrysler Sales a nd Service  Agreement,  dated 
         September 28, 1999,  between  Chrysler  Co rporation and Lithia Chrysler 
         Plymouth Jeep Eagle, Inc. (Additional Term s and Provisions to the Sales 
         and Service Agreements are in Exhibit 10.7 ) (2) 
 
10.8     (b)Mercury Sales and Service Agreement Gen eral Provisions 
 



10.8.1   (f)Supplemental  Terms and  Conditions  ag reement  between  Ford  Motor 
         Company and Lithia Motors, Inc. dated June  12, 1997. 
 
10.8.2   (f)Mercury  Sales and Service  Agreement,  dated June 1, 1997,  between 
         Ford Motor  Company  and Lithia  TLM,  LLC  dba Lithia  Lincoln  Mercury 
         (general provisions are in Exhibit 10.8) ( 3) 
 
10.9     (f)Volkswagen Dealer Agreement Standard Pr ovisions 
 
10.9.1   (a)Volkswagen  Dealer  Agreement  dated  S eptember  17,  1998,  between 
         Volkswagen of America, Inc. and Lithia HPI , Inc. dba Lithia Volkswagen. 
         (standard provisions are in Exhibit 10.9) (4) 
 
10.10    (b)General   Motors  Dealer  Sales  and  S ervice   Agreement   Standard 
         Provisions 
 
10.10.1  (a)Supplemental  Agreement to General Moto rs  Corporation  Dealer Sales 
         and Service Agreement dated January 16, 19 98. 
 
10.10.2  (g)Chevrolet  Dealer Sales and Service Agr eement dated October 13, 1998 
         between General Motors  Corporation,  Chev rolet Motor Division and Camp 
         Automotive, Inc. (5) 
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Exhibit      Description 
-------      ----------- 
 
10.11    (b)Toyota Dealer Agreement Standard Provis ions 
 
 
10.11.1  (a)Toyota Dealer  Agreement,  between Toyo ta Motor Sales, USA, Inc. and 
         Lithia Motors, Inc., dba Lithia Toyota, da ted February 15, 1996. (6) 
 
10.12    (f)Nissan Standard Provisions 
 
10.12.1  (a)Nissan  Public  Ownership  Addendum dat ed August 30, 1999 (identical 
         documents executed by each Nissan store). 
 
 
 
10.12.2  (f)Nissan  Dealer  Term  Sales and  Servic e  Agreement  between  Lithia 
         Motors,  Inc., Lithia NF, Inc., and the Ni ssan Division of Nissan Motor 
         Corporation In USA dated January 2, 1998.  (standard  provisions are in 
         Exhibit 10.12) (7) 
 
10.13    (g)Credit  Agreement  dated November 23, 1 998 between Ford Motor Credit 
         Company and Lithia Motors, Inc. (Acquisiti on Revolving Line of Credit). 
 
 
10.13.1  (a)Amendment  to Credit  Agreement dated N ovember 23, 1998 between Ford 
         Motor Credit Company and Lithia  Motors,  Inc.  (Acquisition  Revolving 
         Line of Credit), effective December 1, 199 9. 
 
 
 
10.13.2  Second  Amendment to Credit  Agreement  da ted November 23, 1998 between 
         Ford  Motor  Credit  Company  and  Lithia  Motors,  Inc.   (Acquisition 
         Revolving Line of Credit), effective Decem ber 1, 2000. 
 
10.14    (g)Credit  Agreement  dated November 23, 1 998 between Ford Motor Credit 
         Company  and  Lithia  Motors,  Inc.  (Used   Vehicle  Revolving  Line of 
         Credit). 



 
 
10.14.1  (a)Amendment  to Credit  Agreement dated N ovember 23, 1998 between Ford 
         Motor Credit  Company and Lithia Motors,  Inc. (Used Vehicle  Revolving 
         Line of Credit), effective December 1, 199 9. 
 
 
 
10.14.2  Second  Amendment to Credit  Agreement  da ted November 23, 1998 between 
         Ford  Motor  Credit  Company  and Lithia  Motors,  Inc.  (Used  Vehicle 
         Revolving Line of Credit), effective Decem ber 1, 2000. 
 
10.15    (h)$10.0 million vehicle lease line and $1 5.0 million equipment line of 
         credit Loan Agreement  between  Lithia  Fi nancial  Corporation,  Lithia 
         Motors,   Inc.  and  Lithia   SALMIR,   In c.  and  U.S.  Bank  National 
         Association. 
 
 
10.15.1  Amendment No. 1 dated March 6, 2000 to Loa n Agreement  dated  September 
         20, 1999 between Lithia  Financial  Corpor ation,  Lithia Motors,  Inc., 
         Lithia SALMIR,  Inc. and Lithia  Aircraft,   Inc. and U.S. Bank National 
         Association. 
 
10.15.2  (i)Amendment  No.  2  dated  July  26,  20 00 to  Loan  Agreement  dated 
         September 20, 1999 between Lithia Financia l Corporation, Lithia Motors, 
         Inc.,  Lithia  SALMIR,  Inc. and Lithia  A ircraft,  Inc. and U.S.  Bank 
         National Association. 
 
 
 
10.15.3  Amendment  No.  3  dated  November  9,  20 00 to  Loan  Agreement  dated 
         September 20, 1999 between Lithia Financia l Corporation, Lithia Motors, 
         Inc.,  Lithia  SALMIR,  Inc. and Lithia  A ircraft,  Inc. and U.S.  Bank 
         National Association. 
 
10.16    (a)Lease  Agreement  between Moreland  Pro perties,  LLC and Lithia Real 
         Estate, Inc., dated May 14, 1999, relating  to properties located at 350 
         S. Havana, Aurora, CO. (8) 
 
10.17    (a)Sublease  between Moreland  Properties,   LLC and Lithia Real Estate, 
         Inc.  dated May 14,  1999,  relating to  p roperties  located at 4940 S. 
         Broadway and 50 E. Chenango, Englewood, CO . (9) 
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Exhibit      Description 
------      ----------- 
 
10.18    (a)Lease Agreement between CAR LIT, L.L.C.  and Lithia Real Estate, Inc. 
         relating to properties in Medford, OR. (10 ) 
 
21       Subsidiaries of Lithia Motors, Inc. 
 
23       Consent of KPMG LLP 
 
99       Risk Factors 
 
(a)      Incorporated  by reference  from the  Comp any's  Form 10-K for the year 
         ended  December  31,  1999 as filed with t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on March 30, 2000. 
 
(b)      Incorporated by reference from the Company 's  Registration Statement on 
         Form S-1, Registration  Statement No. 333- 14031,  as declared effective 
         by the Securities Exchange Commission on D ecember 18, 1996. 
 



(c)      Incorporated  by reference from the Compan y's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
         ended  March  31,  1999 as  filed  with  t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on May 12, 1999. 
 
(d)      Incorporated  by reference from the Compan y's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
         ended  June  30,  1998  as  filed  with  t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on August 13, 1998. 
 
(e)      Incorporated by reference from the Company 's  Registration Statement on 
         Form S-8,  Registration  Statement  No.  3 33-45553,  as filed  with the 
         Securities Exchange Commission on February  4, 1998. 
 
(f)      Incorporated  by reference  from the  Comp any's  Form 10-K for the year 
         ended  December  31,  1997 as filed with t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on March 31, 1998. 
 
(g)      Incorporated  by reference  from the  Comp any's  Form 10-K for the year 
         ended  December  31,  1998 as filed with t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on March 31, 1999. 
 
(h)      Incorporated  by reference from the Compan y's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
         ended  March  31,  2000 as  filed  with  t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on May 11, 2000. 
 
(i)      Incorporated  by reference from the Compan y's Form 10-Q for the quarter 
         ended  September  30, 2000 as filed with t he  Securities  and  Exchange 
         Commission on November 14, 2000. 
 
 
(1)      Substantially  similar agreements of the s ame date exist between Lithia 
         Motors,  Inc. and the six other  corporati ons  controlled by W. Douglas 
         Moreland and acquired in the Moreland acqu isition. 
 
(2)      Substantially  identical  agreements exist  between Chrysler Corporation 
         and those other  subsidiaries  operating D odge,  Chrysler,  Plymouth or 
         Jeep dealerships. 
 
(3)      Substantially   identical   agreements   e xist   for   its   Ford   and 
         Lincoln-Mercury  lines  between  Ford  Mot or  Company  and those  other 
         subsidiaries operating Ford or Lincoln-Mer cury dealerships. 
 
(4)      Substantially identical agreements exist b etween Volkswagen of America, 
         Inc. and those subsidiaries operating Volk swagen dealerships. 
 
(5)      Substantially   identical  agreements  exi st  between  Chevrolet  Motor 
         Division, GM Corporation and those other s ubsidiaries operating General 
         Motors dealerships. 
 
(6)      Substantially  identical  agreements  exis t (except the terms are all 2 
         years)  between   Toyota  Motor  Sales,   USA,  Inc.  and  those  other 
         subsidiaries operating Toyota dealerships.  
 
(7)      Substantially   identical   agreements   e xist  between   Nissan  Motor 
         Corporation and those other subsidiaries o perating Nissan dealerships. 
 
(8)      Substantially identical leases of the same  date exist between:  between 
         Lithia Real Estate,  Inc. and various enti ties controlled by W. Douglas 
         Moreland  relating  to certain  owned  pro perties  associated  with the 
         Moreland acquisition. 
 
(9)      Substantially identical subleases of the s ame date exist between Lithia 
         Real  Estate,  Inc.  and  various  entitie s  controlled  by W.  Douglas 
         Moreland  relating to certain  leased  pro perties  associated  with the 
         Moreland acquisition. 
 
(10)     Lithia Real Estate,  Inc.  leases all the  property in Medford,  Oregon 



         sold to CAR LIT, LLC under substantially  identical leases covering six 
         separate blocks of property. 
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SIGNATURES 
 
Pursuant to the  requirements of Section 13 or 15(d ) of the Securities  Exchange 
Act of 1934,  the  Registrant  has duly  caused  th is report to be signed on its 
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorize d. 
 
Date:  March 20, 2001                       LITHIA MOTORS, INC. 
 
 
                                            By: /s/  Sidney B. DeBoer 
                                               ---- ----------------------------- 
                                                Sid ney B. DeBoer 
                                                Cha irman of the Board and 
                                                Chi ef Executive Officer 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exch ange Act of 1934, this report 
has been signed below by the following  persons on behalf of the  Registrant and 
in the capacities indicated on March 20, 2001: 
 
Signature                                   Title 
---------                                   ----- 
 
 
/s/ Sidney B. DeBoer                        Chairma n of the Board and 
---------------------------------------     Chief E xecutive Officer 
Sidney B. DeBoer                            (Princi pal Executive Officer) 
 
 
/s/ Jeffrey B. DeBoer                       Senior Vice President 
---------------------------------------     and Chi ef Financial Officer 
Jeffrey B. DeBoer                           (Princi pal Financial and 
                                            Account ing Officer) 
 
 
/s/ M.L. Dick Heimann                       Directo r, President and 
---------------------------------------     Chief O perating Officer 
M. L. Dick Heimann 
 
 
 
/s/ R. Bradford Gray                        Directo r and 
---------------------------------------     Executi ve Vice President 
R. Bradford Gray 
 
 
/s/ Thomas Becker                           Directo r 
--------------------------------------- 
Thomas Becker 
 
 
/s/ W. Douglas Moreland                     Directo r 
--------------------------------------- 
W. Douglas Moreland 
 
 



/s/ Gerald F. Taylor                        Directo r 
--------------------------------------- 
Gerald F. Taylor 
 
 
/s/ William J. Young                        Directo r 
--------------------------------------- 
William J. Young 
 
                                       26 
 
 

                          Independent Auditors' Rep ort 
 
 
 
 
 
The Board of Directors and Shareholders 
Lithia Motors, Inc. and Subsidiaries: 
 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying  consolidated  bal ance sheets of Lithia Motors, 
Inc.  and  Subsidiaries  as of  December  31,  2000  and  1999,  and the  related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in s hareholders' equity, and cash 
flows for each of the years in the  three-year  per iod ended  December 31, 2000. 
These consolidated  financial statements are the re sponsibility of the Company's 
management.  Our  responsibility is to express an o pinion on these  consolidated 
financial statements based on our audits. 
 
We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing  standards generally accepted 
in the  United  States of  America.  Those  standar ds  require  that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain  reasonable  assurance  about  whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement.  An a udit includes examining, on a 
test basis,  evidence  supporting  the amounts and  disclosures in the financial 
statements.  An audit also includes assessing the a ccounting principles used and 
significant  estimates  made by  management,  as we ll as evaluating  the overall 
financial  statement  presentation.   We  believe  that  our  audits  provide  a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
In our opinion, the consolidated  financial stateme nts referred to above present 
fairly, in all material respects,  the consolidated  financial position of Lithia 
Motors,  Inc.  and  Subsidiaries  as of  December  31,  2000 and  1999,  and the 
consolidated  results of their  operations  and the ir cash flows for each of the 
years in the  three-year  period ended  December 31 , 2000,  in  conformity  with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the Uni ted States of America. 
 
 
 
 
 
/s/ KPMG LLP 
 
Portland, Oregon 
February 9, 2001 
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                      LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSI DIARIES 
                          CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEE TS 
                        AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2000 AND  1999 



                                 (in thousands) 
 
                                                        December 31, 
                                                   -------------------- 
                                                     2000       1999 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
Assets 
Current Assets: 
    Cash and cash equivalents                    $   38,789 $   30,364 
    Trade receivables, net of allowance for 
      doubtful accounts of $346 and $851             32,273     25,683 
    Notes receivable, current portion, net of 
      allowance for doubtful accounts of 
      $988 and $677                                   1,933      2,777 
    Inventories, net                                314,290    268,281 
    Vehicles leased to others, current portion        4,961      3,000 
    Prepaid expenses and other                        4,276      3,815 
    Deferred income taxes                                 -        724 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
        Total Current Assets                        396,522    334,644 
 
Land and buildings, net of accumulated 
  depreciation of $1,261 and $646                    60,788     31,301 
Equipment and other, net of accumulated 
  depreciation of $7,173 and $5,037                  29,452     21,067 
Notes Receivable, less current portion                1,485      4,095 
Vehicles Leased to Others, less current portion       2,962      2,808 
Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization of 
  $6,219 and $3,073                                 133,871    110,677 
Other Non-Current Assets, net of accumulated 
  amortization of $182 and $143                       2,923      1,841 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
        Total Assets                             $  628,003 $  506,433 
                                                   =========  ========= 
 
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity 
Current Liabilities: 
    Flooring notes payable                       $  255,137 $  208,403 
    Current maturities of long-term debt              5,257      7,039 
    Current portion of capital leases                    85         93 
    Trade payables                                   13,651     11,873 
    Payable to related party                              -      9,000 
    Accrued liabilities                              22,086     23,237 
    Deferred income taxes                             1,389          - 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
        Total Current Liabilities                   297,605    259,645 
 
Used Vehicle Flooring Facility                       59,000     35,500 
Real Estate Debt, less current maturities            28,898     18,963 
Other Long-Term Debt, less current maturities        43,566     19,252 
Long-Term Capital Lease Obligation, less current 
  maturities                                            122        196 
Deferred Revenue                                      1,993      2,262 
Other Long-Term Liabilities                           6,900      5,456 
Deferred Income Taxes                                 8,144      9,521 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
        Total Liabilities                           446,228    350,795 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
 
Shareholders' Equity: 
    Preferred stock - no par value; 
      authorized 15,000 
      shares; 15 shares designated 
      Series M Preferred; 
      issued and outstanding 14.9 and 10.4            8,915      6,216 
    Class A common stock - no par value; 



      authorized 100,000 shares; issued and 
      outstanding 8,412 and 7,824                   108,565    102,333 
    Class B common stock 
      authorized 25,000 shares; issued and 
      outstanding 4,087                                 508        508 
    Additional paid-in capital                          306      7,428 
   Unrealized gain on investments                        15          - 
    Retained earnings                                63,466     39,153 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
       Total Shareholders' Equity                   181,775    155,638 
                                                   ---------  --------- 
       Total Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity  $628,003  $ 506,433 
                                                   =========  ========= 
 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 
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                      LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSI DIARIES 
                          CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS O F OPERATIONS 
              FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 , 1999 AND 1998 
                                 (in thousands) 
 
                                                                  Year Ended December 31, 
                                               ---- ------------------------------------------ 
                                                   2000            1999             1998 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
 
Revenues: 
   New vehicle sales                         $      898,016  $      673,339   $      388,431 
   Used vehicle sales                               480,846         375,562          220,544 
   Service, body and parts                          164,002         120,722           72,216 
   Other revenues                                   115,747          73,036           33,549 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
        Total revenues                            1 ,658,611       1,242,659          714,740 
Cost of sales                                     1 ,391,042       1,043,373          599,379 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
Gross profit                                        267,569         199,286          115,361 
Selling, general and administrative                 195,500         146,381           85,188 
Depreciation - buildings                                994             366              410 
Depreciation - equipment and other                    3,425           3,274            2,132 
Amortization                                          3,186           1,933              927 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
        Income from operations                       64,464          47,332           26,704 
Other income (expense): 
   Floorplan interest expense                       (17,728)        (11,105)          (7,108) 
   Other interest expense                            (7,917)         (4,250)          (2,735) 
   Other income, net                                    716              74              921 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
                                                    (24,929)        (15,281)          (8,922) 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
Income before income taxes                           39,535          32,051           17,782 
Income tax expense                                  (15,222)        (12,877)          (6,993) 
                                               ---- ---------   -------------    ------------- 
Net income                                   $       24,313  $       19,174   $       10,789 
                                               ==== =========   =============    ============= 
 
Basic net income per share                   $         1.95  $         1.72   $         1.18 
                                               ==== =========   =============    ============= 
 
Shares used in basic net income per share            12,447          11,137            9,147 
                                               ==== =========   =============    ============= 



 
Diluted net income per share                 $         1.76  $         1.60   $         1.14 
                                               ==== =========   =============    ============= 
 
Shares used in diluted net income per share          13,804          11,998            9,470 
                                               ==== =========   =============    ============= 
 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 
 
                                      F-3 
 
 
 
 
                      LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSI DIARIES 
          CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHA REHOLDERS' EQUITY - 
                        DECEMBER 31, 2000, 1999 AND  1998 
                                 (in thousands) 
 
                                                                                                         Accumulated
                                                                                                         Other
                                          Series M                   Common Stock           Additional    Compre
                                        Preferred S tock       Class A          Class B       Paid In     hensive  Retained  Share
                                        Shares   Am ount  Shares  Amount     Shares  Amount  Capital      Income   Earnings  holders
                                        ------   -- ----  ------  ------     ------  ------  ------
Balance at December 31, 1997                 -   $  -     2,926  $28,117      4,110  $  511   $  59     $      
 
Net income                                   -      -      -         -        -       -           
Issuance of Class A Common Stock, 
  net of offering expenses of $594           -      -    3,151   42,498       -       -           
Compensation for stock option issuances      -      -      -         -        -       -          78           
Tax benefit of disqualifying dispositions    -      -      -         -        -       -          13           
Issuance of Class A Common Stock in 
  connection with acquisition                -      -       13      125       -       -           
Issuance of stock in connection with 
  employee stock plans                       -      -       15      131       -       -           
                                        ------  --- ---  ------   ------     ------   ------  ------
Balance at December 31, 1998                 -      -     6,105   70,871      4,110      511     150          
 
Net income                                   -      -      -         -        -        -          
Issuance of Class A Common Stock in 
  connection with acquisitions               -      -    1,611    30,638      -        -       4,500          
Issuance of stock in connection with 
  employee stock plans                       -      -        85       821                                                        821
Compensation for stock option issuances      -      -      -         -        -        -          78          
Conversion of Class B Common Stock 
  into Class A Common Stock                  -      -        23         3      (23)      (3)                                      
Issuance of Series M Preferred Stock in 
  connection with acquisition             10.4   6, 216      -         -       -        -       2,700          
                                        ------  --- ---   ------    ------   ------   ------   ------
Balance at December 31, 1999              10.4   6, 216    7,824   102,333    4,087      508   7,428          
Comprehensive income: 
  Net income                                 -       -      -         -       -        -          
  Unrealized gain on investments             -       -      -         -       -        -          
                                                                                                                             
                                                                                                                             24,328
Issuance of  stock in connection with 
  acquisitions                             4.5   2, 699       304    4,500     -        -      (7,200)         
Issuance of stock in connection with 
  employee stock plans                       -       -       324    2,213     -        -          
Repurchase of Class A Common Stock           -       -       (40)    (481)    -        -          
Compensation for stock option issuances      -       -         -        -     -        -          78          
                                        ------  --- ---    ------    ------  ------   ------  ------
Balance at December 31, 2000              14.9   8, 915     8,412  $108,565  4,087   $  508   $ 306       $   15   $63,466  $181,775
                                        ======  === ===    ======    ======  ======   ======  ======       ======   ======    ======



 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 
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                      LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSI DIARIES 
                      CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CA SH FLOWS 
              FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 , 1999 AND 1998 
                                 (in thousands) 
 
                                                                  Year Ended December 31, 
                                                        ------------------------------------------
                                                           2000           1999           1998 
                                                        -----------    -----------    ------------
Cash  flows from operating activities: 
   Net income                                           $   24,313     $   19,174     $    10,789
   Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 
      provided by operating activities: 
         Depreciation and amortization                       7,605          5,573           3,469
         Compensation related to stock option issua nces         78             78              78
         (Gain) loss on sale of assets                          55             (4)             30
         Loss on sale of vehicles leased to others              13            253              33
         Deferred income taxes                                 196         (1,673)            565
         Equity in income of affiliate                         (30)           (61)             (7)
         (Increase) decrease, net of effect of 
                acquisitions: 
            Trade and installment contract 
                receivables, net                            (3,701)         2,940          (6,714)
            Inventories                                      1,814        (20,094)        (17,614)
            Prepaid expenses and other                        (391)           845          (1,614)
            Other noncurrent assets                         (1,426)          (378)            204
         Increase (decrease), net of effect of 
                acquisitions: 
            Floorplan notes payable                          7,083         16,012          21,425
            Trade payables                                     814        (13,570)         (2,759)
            Accrued liabilities                             (1,368)         4,492           2,500
            Other liabilities                                1,232          8,794          (1,039)
                                                        -----------    -----------    ------------
               Net cash provided by 
                        operating activities                36,287         22,381           9,346
 
Cash flows from investing activities: 
   Notes receivable issued                                    (734)          (806)           (639)
   Principal payments received on notes receivable           4,197          6,977           3,456
   Capital expenditures: 
      Maintenance                                           (3,599)        (1,812)           (797)
      Financeable real estate and other                    (22,384)       (12,774)         (3,137)
   Proceeds from sale of assets                              1,140          1,779             223
   Proceeds from sale of vehicles leased to others           6,597          7,805           8,481
   Expenditures for vehicles leased to others               (9,701)        (8,102)         (9,322)
   Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired         (56,660)       (35,020)        (36,531)
   Cash from sale of franchises                              1,287              -                
   Distribution from affiliate                                 380          1,268               
                                                        -----------    -----------    ------------
               Net cash used in investing activitie s       (79,477)       (40,685)        (38,266)
 
Cash flows from financing activities: 
   Net borrowings (repayments) on lines of credit           54,120         31,380         (15,500)
   Payments on capital lease obligations                      (107)        (1,018)              
   Principal payments on long- term debt                    (13,560)       (13,175 )        (39,083)
   Proceeds from issuance of long- term debt                  9,430          9,781          43,287
   Repurchase of common stock                                 (481)             -                



   Proceeds from issuance of common stock                    2,213            821          42,641
                                                        -----------    -----------    ------------
               Net cash provided by 
                        financing activities                51,615         27,789          31,345
 
                                                        -----------    -----------    ------------
Increase in cash and cash equivalents                        8,425          9,485           2,425
 
Cash and cash equivalents: 
   Beginning of period                                      30,364         20,879          18,454
                                                        -----------    -----------    ------------
   End of period                                      $     38,789   $     30,364   $      20,879
                                                        ===========    ===========    ============
 
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information: 
   Cash paid during the period for interest           $     25,580   $     15,330   $       9,728
   Cash paid during the period for income taxes             15,266         11,469           6,482
 
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and 
  financing activities: 
   Stock issued in connection with acquisitions       $          -    $     44,053   $         125
   Debt assumed/issued in connection with 
        acquisitions                                          5,978         5,657          16,610
   Termination of capital lease                                  -           2,431               
 
 
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial st atements. 
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                      LITHIA MOTORS, INC. AND SUBSI DIARIES 
                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
                        DECEMBER 31, 2000, 1999 and  1998 
 
        (Dollar and share amounts in thousands, exc ept per share amounts) 
 
(1)      SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
 
         Organization and Business 
         ------------------------- 
 
         Lithia is a leading  operator of automotiv e  franchises and retailer of 
new and used vehicles and services  through a well  developed  franchise  system 
with its automotive  manufacturer  partners. As of December 31, 2000, we offered 
26 brands of new vehicles, through 111 franchises i n 52 locations in the western 
United  States and over the  Internet.  At  Decembe r  31,  2000,  we operated 14 
dealerships in California,  14 in Oregon, 7 in Wash ington,  6 in Colorado,  5 in 
Nevada,  4 in Idaho and 2 in South  Dakota.  Lithia   sells new and used cars and 
light trucks, sells replacement parts,  provides ve hicle maintenance,  warranty, 
paint and repair services,  and arranges related fi nancing and insurance for its 
automotive customers. 
 
         Principles of Consolidation 
         --------------------------- 
 
         The   accompanying   financial   statement s   reflect  the  results  of 
operations,  the financial position,  and the cash flows for Lithia Motors, Inc. 
and its directly  and  indirectly  wholly-owned  su bsidiaries.  All  significant 
intercompany accounts and transactions,  consisting   principally of intercompany 
sales, have been eliminated upon consolidation. 
 
         Cash and Cash Equivalents 
         ------------------------- 
 
         For purposes of reporting cash flows, the Company  considers  contracts 



in transit  and all highly  liquid  debt  instrumen ts  with a maturity  of three 
months or less when purchased to be cash equivalent s. 
 
         Inventories 
         ----------- 
 
         The Company accounts for inventories using  the specific  identification 
method  for  vehicles  and  the  first-in  first-ou t  (FIFO)  method  for  parts 
(collectively, the FIFO method). 
 
 
 
         Property, Plant and Equipment 
         ----------------------------- 
 
         Property,  plant  and  equipment  are  sta ted  at cost  and  are  being 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives,  pri ncipally on the straight-line 
basis. The range of estimated useful lives is as fo llows: 
 
        Building and improvements                                  40 years 
        Service equipment                                     5 to 10 years 
        Furniture, signs and fixtures                         5 to 10 years 
 
 
 
         The cost for  maintenance,  repairs  and m inor  renewals is expensed as 
incurred,  while significant  renewals and betterme nts are capitalized.  When an 
asset is retired or  otherwise  disposed  of, the r elated  cost and  accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the accounts,  and an y gain or loss is credited or 
charged to income. 
 
                                      F-6 
 
 
         Leased property meeting certain criteria i s capitalized and the present 
value of the related lease payments is recorded as a liability.  Amortization of 
capitalized leased assets is computed on a straight -line  basis over the shorter 
of the  useful  life or the term of the lease and i s  included  in  depreciation 
expense. 
 
         Investment in Affiliate 
         ----------------------- 
 
         The Company has a 20% interest in Lithia P roperties,  LLC, of which the 
other members are Sidney DeBoer (35%), M. L. Dick H eimann (30%) and three of Mr. 
DeBoer's  children (5% each).  The  investment is a ccounted for using the equity 
method,  with a carrying  value of $131 and $481 at  December  31, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively. 
 
         Environmental Liabilities and Expenditures  
         ------------------------------------------  
 
         Accruals for environmental  matters,  if a ny, are recorded in operating 
expenses  when it is probable  that a liability has  been incurred and the amount 
of the liability can be reasonably estimated.  Accr ued liabilities are exclusive 
of claims against third parties and are not discoun ted. 
 
         In general,  costs related to environmenta l  remediation are charged to 
expense.  Environmental costs are capitalized if th e costs increase the value of 
the property and/or mitigate or prevent contaminati on from future operations. 
 
         Income Taxes 
         ------------ 
 
         Income taxes are accounted for under the a sset and liability  method as 
prescribed by Statement of Financial  Accounting  S tandards No. 109  "Accounting 



for Income Taxes."  Deferred tax assets and  liabil ities  are recognized for the 
future tax  consequences  attributable  to  differe nces  between  the  financial 
statement  carrying  amounts  of  existing  assets  and  liabilities  and  their 
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax cre dit  carryforwards.  Deferred 
tax assets and  liabilities  are measured  using  e nacted tax rates  expected to 
apply to taxable income in the years in which those   temporary  differences  are 
expected  to be  recovered  or settled.  The effect  on  deferred  tax assets and 
liabilities  of a change in tax rates is recognized  in income in the period that 
includes the enactment date. 
 
 
 
         Computation of Per Share Amounts 
         -------------------------------- 
 
         Basic  earnings per share (EPS) and dilute d EPS are computed  using the 
methods  prescribed  by  Statement of Financial  Ac counting  Standards  No. 128, 
Earnings per Share (SFAS 128).  Following is a  rec onciliation  of basic EPS and 
diluted EPS: 
 
Year Ended December 31,      2000                       1999                      1998 
-------------------------    ---------------------- ---  ------------------------- -------------------------
                                               Per                       Per                       Per
                                               Shar e                     Share                     Sha re
BASIC EPS                    Income   Shares   Amou nt   Income   Shares  Amount   Income   Shares  Amo unt
                             -------  -------  ---- ---  -------  ------  -------  -------  ------
Income available to 
 Common Shareholders         $24,313  12,447   $1.9 5    $19,174  11,137  $1.72    $10,789  9,147   $1. 18
                                              ===== =                    ======                     === ==
EFFECT OF DILUTIVE 
SECURITIES 
  Stock Options                  -      152                 -       364                -      323
  Contingent issuances           -        -                 -       128                -      -  
  Series   M    Preferred        -    1,205                 -       369                -      -  
 Stock 
                             ------- -------            -------  ------            ------- ------
DILUTED EPS 
Income available to 
 Common Shareholders         $24,313 13,804   $1.76      $19,174  11,998  $1.60      $10,789  9,470 $1. 14
                                             ======                      ======                     === ==
 
 
 
         683,34 and 108 shares issuable  pursuant t o stock options have not been 
included in the above calculations for 2000, 1999 a nd 1998, respectively,  since 
they would have been antidilutive, or "not in the m oney." 
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         Advertising 
         ----------- 
 
         The  Company  expenses  production  and ot her costs of  advertising  as 
incurred.  Advertising  expense  was  $15,332,  $11 ,189 and $5,749 for the years 
ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectivel y. 
 
         Goodwill 
         -------- 
 
         Goodwill, which represents the excess purc hase price over fair value of 
net assets acquired,  is amortized on the straight- line  basis over the expected 
period to be benefited of forty years. The Company  assesses the  recoverability 
of this intangible asset by determining whether the  amortization of the goodwill 
balance over its remaining  life can be recovered  through  undiscounted  future 



operating  cash  flows  of  the  acquired  operatio n.   The  assessment  of  the 
recoverability  of goodwill will be impacted if est imated  future operating cash 
flows are not achieved. 
 
         Concentrations of Credit Risk 
         ----------------------------- 
 
         Concentrations  of credit risk with  respe ct to trade  receivables  are 
limited due to the large number of customers  compr ising the Company's  customer 
base.  Receivables from all manufacturers  accounte d for 36.4% of total accounts 
receivable at December 31, 2000. Included in the 36 .4% are two manufacturers who 
accounted for 12.5% and 10.3%,  respectively,  of t he total accounts  receivable 
balance at December 31, 2000. 
 
         Financial  instruments,   which  potential ly  subject  the  Company  to 
concentrations of credit risk, consist principally of cash deposits. The Company 
generally  is  exposed to credit  risk from  balanc es  on  deposit in  financial 
institutions in excess of the FDIC-insured limit. 
 
         Financial Instruments and Market Risks 
         -------------------------------------- 
 
         The  carrying  amount of cash  equivalents ,  trade  receivables,  trade 
payables,  accrued liabilities and short term borro wings approximates fair value 
because  of the  short-term  nature  of these  inst ruments.  The fair  values of 
long-term  debt and  notes  receivable  for  leased   vehicles  accounted  for as 
sales-type  leases were  estimated  by  discounting   the future cash flows using 
market interest rates and do not differ significant ly from that reflected in the 
financial statements. 
 
         Fair value  estimates  are made at a speci fic  point in time,  based on 
relevant market information about the financial ins trument.  These estimates are 
subjective  in nature and  involve  uncertainties  and  matters  of  significant 
judgment  and  therefore  cannot  be  determined  w ith  precision.   Changes  in 
assumptions could significantly affect the estimate s. 
 
         Lithia has variable rate floor plan notes payable and other credit line 
borrowings that subject it to market risk exposure.   At December 31, 2000 Lithia 
had $349,637  outstanding  under such  facilities a t interest rates ranging from 
7.90% to 9.15% per annum.  An increase or decrease in the  interest  rates would 
affect interest expense for the period accordingly.  
 
         Lithia also subjects  itself to credit ris k and market risk by entering 
into  interest  rate  swaps.  See Note 5. The  Comp any  minimizes  the credit or 
repayment risk in derivative instruments by enterin g into transactions with high 
quality institutions, whose credit rating is higher  than Aa. 
 
         Derivative Financial Instruments 
         -------------------------------- 
 
         Lithia enters into interest rate swap agre ements to reduce its exposure 
to market risks from changing  interest rates.  The  difference  between interest 
paid and interest received, which may change as mar ket interest rates change, is 
accrued and  recognized  as interest  expense or in terest  income.  If a swap is 
terminated  prior  to its  maturity,  the  gain or loss is  recognized  over the 
remaining original life of the swap if the item hed ged remains  outstanding,  or 
immediately if the item hedged does not remain  out standing.  If the swap is not 
terminated  prior to  maturity,  but the  underlyin g  hedged  item is no  longer 
outstanding, the interest rate swap is marked to ma rket, and any unrealized gain 
or loss is recognized immediately. 
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         In June  2000,  the  FASB  issued  Stateme nt  of  Financial  Accounting 
Standards No. 138,  "Accounting for Certain  Deriva tive  Instruments and Certain 



Hedging Activities-an amendment of FASB Statement N o. 133" ("SFAS 138"). In June 
1999,  the FASB issued  Statement of  Financial  Ac counting  Standards  No. 137, 
"Accounting  for Derivative  Instruments and Hedgin g  Activities"  ("SFAS 137"). 
SFAS 137 is an amendment to Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 133, 
"Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities". SFAS 137 and 138 
establish  accounting and reporting  standards  req uiring that every  derivative 
instrument   (including  certain  derivative   inst ruments   embedded  in  other 
contracts)  be  recorded on the  balance  sheet as either an asset or  liability 
measured  at its  fair  value.  SFAS 137 and 138  r equire  that  changes  in the 
derivative's  fair value be  recognized  currently in earnings  unless  specific 
hedge  accounting  criteria are met.  Special  acco unting for qualifying  hedges 
allows a derivative's  gains and losses to offset r elated  results on the hedged 
item  in the  income  statement,  and  requires  th at a  company  must  formally 
document,  designate and assess the  effectiveness of transactions  that receive 
hedge  accounting.  SFAS 137 and 138 are  effective   for fiscal years  beginning 
after June 15, 2000.  The adoption of SFAS 137 and 138 in January 2001  resulted 
in the  recognition  of a  liability  of $1,542  an d a  corresponding  charge to 
accumulated  other  comprehensive  income  for the fair  value of rate  swapping 
agreements. 
 
         Use of Estimates 
         ---------------- 
 
         The  preparation of financial  statements in conformity  with generally 
accepted  accounting  principles  requires  managem ent  to  make  estimates  and 
assumptions  that affect the  amounts  reported  in  the  consolidated  financial 
statements and related notes to financial statement s.  Changes in such estimates 
may affect amounts reported in future periods. 
 
         Revenue Recognition 
         ------------------- 
 
         Revenue from the sale of vehicles is recog nized upon delivery, when the 
sales  contract is signed,  down payment has been  received and funding has been 
approved  from the lending  agent.  Fleet sales of vehicles  whereby the Company 
does not take title are shown on a net basis in oth er revenue. 
 
         Finance fees  represent  revenue earned by  the Company for notes placed 
with financial institutions in connection with cust omer vehicle financing net of 
estimated chargebacks.  Finance fees are recognized  in income upon acceptance of 
the credit by the financial institution. Insurance income represents commissions 
earned on credit life, accident and disability insu rance sold in connection with 
the vehicle on behalf of third party insurance comp anies. Commissions from third 
party service  contracts are recognized  upon sale.   Insurance  commissions  are 
recognized  in  income  upon  customer  acceptance  of the  insurance  terms  as 
evidenced by contract execution.  Finance fees and insurance commissions, net of 
charge-backs,  are  classified as other  operating  revenue in the  accompanying 
consolidated statements of operations. 
 
         Major Supplier and Dealer Agreements 
         ------------------------------------ 
 
         The  Company  purchases  substantially  al l of  its  new  vehicles  and 
inventory from various  manufacturers  at the  prev ailing  prices charged by the 
auto maker to all  franchised  dealers.  The  Compa ny's  overall  sales could be 
impacted by the auto maker's inability or unwilling ness to supply the dealership 
with an adequate supply of popular models. 
 
         The  Company  enters  into  agreements  (D ealer  Agreements)  with  the 
manufacturers.  The  Dealer  Agreements  generally  limit  the  location  of the 
dealership and provide the auto maker approval righ ts over changes in dealership 
management  and  ownership.  The auto makers are al so  entitled to terminate the 
Dealer Agreements if the dealership is in material breach of the terms. 
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         The  Company's  ability  to  expand  opera tions  depends,  in part,  on 
obtaining  consents  of the  manufacturers  for the   acquisition  of  additional 
dealerships. 
 
         Stock-Based Compensation Plans 
         ------------------------------ 
 
         The  Company  accounts  for its  stock-bas ed  compensation  plan  under 
Accounting  Principles  Board  Opinion No. 25,  "Ac counting  for Stock Issued to 
Employees" (APB 25). The Company  adopted the discl osure  option of Statement of 
Financial   Accounting   Standards   No.  123,   "A ccounting   for   Stock-Based 
Compensation" (SFAS 123). SFAS 123 requires that co mpanies,  which do not choose 
to account for stock-based  compensation as prescri bed by this statement,  shall 
disclose the pro forma effects on earnings and earn ings per share as if SFAS 123 
had been  adopted.  Additionally,  certain other  d isclosures  are required with 
respect to stock  compensation  and the  assumption s  used to determine  the pro 
forma effects of SFAS 123. 
 
         Segment Reporting 
         ----------------- 
 
         The Company adopted Statement of Financial  Accounting Standards No. 131 
(SFAS 131), Disclosures about Segments of an Enterp rise and Related Information, 
for the year ended December 31, 1998.  Based upon  definitions  contained within 
SFAS 131,  the Company has  determined  that it  op erates in one  segment,  auto 
retailing. 
 
         Reclassifications 
         ----------------- 
 
         Certain  items  previously  reported  in s pecific  financial  statement 
captions have been reclassified to conform with the  current presentation. 
 
 
 
(2)      INVENTORIES AND RELATED NOTES PAYABLE 
 
         The new and  used  vehicle  inventory,  co llateralizing  related  notes 
payable, and other inventory were as follows: 
 
                                                          December 31, 
                                      ------------- ---------------------------------------- 
                                               2000                           1999 
                                      ------------- ----------       ----------------------- 
                                      Inventory      Notes          Inventory      Notes 
                                        Cost        Payable           Cost        Payable 
                                      ---------    ----------       ----------    --------- 
New and program vehicles           $   239,185  $    255,137     $    198,812  $   208,403 
Used vehicles                           58,136        59,000           56,292       35,500 
Parts and accessories                   16,969             -           13,177            - 
                                      ---------    ----------       ----------    --------- 
  Total inventories                $   314,290  $    314,137     $    268,281  $   243,903 
                                      =========    ==========       ==========    ========= 
 
 
 
         The inventory balance is generally  reduce d by manufacturer's  purchase 
discounts.  Such  reductions  are  not  reflected  in  the  related  floor  plan 
liability. 
 
         All new vehicles are pledged to collateral ize  floor plan notes payable 
to financial institutions.  The floor plan notes pa yable bear interest,  payable 
monthly on the  outstanding  balance,  at a rate of  interest  determined  by the 
lender, subject to incentives. The new vehicle floo r plan notes are due when the 
related vehicle is sold. As such,  these floor plan  notes payable are shown as a 



current liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. 
 
         Used vehicles are pledged to  collateraliz e  a $150,000 line of credit. 
The line of credit is due in 2003. 
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(3)      PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
 
        December 31,                                 2000               1999 
        --------------------------------------   -- ------------    ------------- 
        Buildings and improvements                  28,365        $     15,427 
        Service equipment                            8,522               6,953 
        Furniture, signs and fixtures               24,857              19,151 
                                                 -- ------------    ------------- 
                                                    61,744              41,531 
        Less accumulated depreciation               (8,434)             (5,683) 
                                                 -- ------------    ------------- 
                                                    53,310              35,848 
        Land                                        28,659              12,872 
        Construction in progress, buildings          5,025               3,648 
        Construction in progress, other              3,246                   - 
                                                 -- ------------    ------------- 
                                                    90,240        $     52,368 
                                                 == ============    ============= 
 
 
 
 
 
(4)      VEHICLES LEASED TO OTHERS AND RELATED LEAS E RECEIVABLES 
 
        December 31,                                 2000               1999 
        ------------------------------------     -- ------------   -------------- 
        Vehicles leased to others             $      8,684        $      6,696 
        Less accumulated depreciation                 (761)               (888) 
                                                 -- ------------   -------------- 
                                                     7,923               5,808 
        Less current portion                        (4,961)             (3,000) 
                                                 -- ------------   -------------- 
                                              $      2,962        $      2,808 
                                                 == ============   ============== 
 
 
 
         Vehicles leased to others are stated at co st and depreciated over their 
estimated  useful lives (5 years) on a straight-lin e  basis.  Lease  receivables 
result from  customer,  employee and fleet leases o f vehicles  under  agreements 
that qualify as operating  leases.  Leases are  can celable  at the option of the 
lessee after providing 30 days written notice. 
 
(5)      DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
         In order to reduce the  variability  of in terest  payments,  Lithia has 
fixed a portion of its  interest  expense by  utili zing  interest  rate swaps as 
follows: 
 
         o        Effective  September 1, 2000, Lit hia entered into a five year, 
                  $25,000  interest rate swap with U.S.  Bank Dealer  Commercial 
                  Services at a fixed rate of 6.88%  per annum. 
 
         o        Effective  November 1, 2000 Lithi a  entered into a three year, 
                  $25,000  interest  rate  swap  U. S.  Bank  Dealer   Commercial 



                  Services at a fixed rate of 6.47%  per annum. 
 
         Lithia earns interest on both of the $25 m illion interest rate swaps at 
the one month LIBOR rate  adjusted on the first and  sixteenth of every month and 
is obligated to pay interest at the fixed rate set for each swap (6.88% or 6.47% 
per annum) on the same amount.  The difference  bet ween  interest earned and the 
interest  obligation  accrued is  received or paid each month and is recorded in 
the  statement of  operations as interest  income o r interest  expense.  The one 
month LIBOR rate at December 31, 2000 was 6.56% per  annum. 
 
         The fair  value of  interest  rate swap  a greements  and the  amount of 
hedging losses  deferred on interest rate swaps was  $1,542 at December 31, 2000. 
Lithia did not have any hedging  contracts at Decem ber 31, 1999.  As of December 
31, 2000,  approximately  76% of Lithia's total deb t  outstanding was subject to 
un-hedged variable rates of interest. As a result, recent interest rate declines 
have  resulted in a net  reduction  of Lithia's  in terest  expense.  The Company 
intends to continue to  gradually  hedge its  inter est  rate  exposure if market 
rates continue to decline. 
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(6)      NOTES RECEIVABLE UNDER SALES-TYPE LEASES 
 
         At one of its locations, the Company lease s vehicles to customers under 
sales-type  leases.  The following lists the compon ents of the net investment in 
sales-type  leases,  classified as notes receivable  in the consolidated  balance 
sheets. 
 
December 31,                                                   2000               1999 
--------------------------------------------------- -      ---------------     ------------- 
Total minimum lease payments to be received            $       3,681       $     7,376 
Allowance for uncollectible notes and repossession 
  losses                                                        (599)             (209) 
                                                          ---------------     ------------- 
                                                               3,082             7,167 
Unearned interest income                                        (405)           (1,039) 
                                                          ---------------     ------------- 
                                                       $       2,677       $     6,128 
                                                          ===============     ============= 
 
 
         Future  minimum lease  payments to be rece ived on the notes  receivable 
after December 31, 2000 are as follows: 
 
Year ending December 31, 
 
 
--------------------------------------- 
2001                                     $    1,485  
2002                                            906  
2003                                            222  
2004                                             64  
                                           -------- ---- 
Total                                    $    2,677  
                                           ======== ==== 
 
 
(7)      LINES OF CREDIT AND LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
 
         In December 2000,  Lithia's  existing  cre dit facility with Ford Credit 
was  increased  by $130,000 to a total of $580,000 and the  expiration  date was 
extended to November  2003 with  interest  due mont hly.  The  facility  includes 



$250,000  for new and  program  vehicle  flooring,  $150,000  for  used  vehicle 
flooring, $130,000 for franchise acquisitions and $ 50,000 in mortgage financing. 
Lithia also has the option to convert the acquisiti on line into a five-year term 
loan. 
 
         The lines with Ford Credit are  cross-coll ateralized and are secured by 
inventory,  accounts receivable,  intangible assets  and equipment. The other new 
vehicle lines are secured by new vehicle inventory of the relevant stores. 
 
         The Ford Credit lines of credit contain fi nancial  covenants  requiring 
Lithia to maintain compliance with, among other thi ngs,  specified ratios of (i) 
total debt to tangible base capital;  (ii) total  a djusted debt to tangible base 
capital;  (iii) current ratio; (iv) fixed charge co verage; and (v) net cash. The 
Ford  Credit  lines of credit  agreements  also  pr eclude  the  payment  of cash 
dividends  without the prior  consent of Ford Credi t.  Lithia was in  compliance 
with all such covenants at December 31, 2000. 
 
         Toyota Motor Credit  Corporation,  Chrysle r  Financial  Corporation and 
General Motors  Acceptance  Corporation have agreed  to floor all of Lithia's new 
vehicles for their respective brands with Ford serv ing as the primary lender for 
all  other  brands.  There are no formal  limits  t o these  commitments  for new 
vehicle wholesale financing. 
 
         In addition,  U.S. Bank N.A. has extended a $27,500  revolving  line of 
credit for leased vehicles and equipment purchases.  
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         The above  facilities have variable  inter est rates,  which ranged from 
7.90% to  9.15% at  December  31,  2000.  Amounts  outstanding  on the  lines at 
December 31, 2000 were as follows (in thousands): 
 
 
 
        New and Program Vehicle Lines                       $255,137 
        Used Vehicle Line                                     59,000 
        Acquisition Line                                       8,000 
        Equipment & Leased Vehicle Line                   27,500 
                                                         -------------- 
                                                            $349,637 
                                                         ============== 
 
 
         Long-term debt consists of the following: 
 
        December 31,                                             2000              1999 
        ------------------------------------------- ----      --------------     ----------- 
         Equipment & lease vehicle line of credit         $  27,500      $     4,880 
         Acquisition line of credit                               8,000                0 
         Used vehicle flooring line of credit                    59,000           35,500 
         Mortgages  payable in monthly  installment s of 
           $287,  including  interest between 7.00%  and 
           9.50%,   maturing   fully   December   2 019; 
 
           secured by land and buildings                         30,571           19,893 
         Notes payable in monthly  installments of $144 
           plus  interest  calculated  daily  at  L IBOR 
           plus 2.20%,  refinanced  during 2000 as part 
           of the  equipment  and lease vehicle lin e of 
           credit                                                     0            6,605 
         Notes payable in monthly  installments  of  $80 
           plus  interest   between  6.96%  and  9. 50%, 
           maturing  at  various  dates  through  2 004; 
           secured by vehicles leased to others                   1,819            4,514 
         Notes payable  related to  acquisitions,  with 



           interest  rates  between  5.50%  and  9. 50%, 
           maturing  at  various  dates  between  A pril 
 
 
           2001 and December 2010                                 9,831            9,342 
         Note  payable in monthly  installments  of  $3, 
           including   interest  at  10.25%,   matu ring 
           fully August 2000                                          0               20 
                                                             --------------     ----------- 
                                                                136,721           80,754 
         Less current maturities                                 (5,257)          (7,039) 
                                                             --------------     ----------- 
                                                          $     131,464      $    73,715 
                                                             ==============     =========== 
 
 
 
         The  schedule  of future  principal  payme nts on  long-term  debt after 
December 31, 2000 is as follows: 
 
 
 
Year ending December 31, 
--------------------------------------- 
2001                                     $       5, 257 
2002                                            36, 059 
2003                                            71, 837 
2004                                             1, 531 
2005                                             6, 588 
Thereafter                                      15, 449 
                                           -------- ---- 
Total principal payments                 $     136, 721 
                                           ======== ==== 
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(8)      SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
         The shares of Class A Common Stock are not   convertible  into any other 
series or class of the  Company's  securities.  How ever,  each  share of Class B 
Common Stock is freely convertible into one share o f Class A Common Stock at the 
option of the holder of the Class B Common  Stock.  All shares of Class B Common 
Stock  shall  automatically  convert  to  shares  o f Class A Common  Stock (on a 
share-for-share  basis,  subject to the adjustments ) on the earliest record date 
for an annual meeting of the Company  shareholders on which the number of shares 
of Class B Common  Stock  outstanding  is less  tha n 1% of the  total  number of 
shares of Common  Stock  outstanding.  Shares of Cl ass B Common Stock may not be 
transferred to third parties, except for transfers to certain family members and 
in other limited circumstances. 
 
         Holders of Class A Common Stock are entitl ed to one vote for each share 
held of record,  and holders of Class B Common  Sto ck are  entitled to ten votes 
for each share held of record. The Class A Common S tock and Class B Common Stock 
vote  together  as a  single  class  on  all  matte rs  submitted  to a  vote  of 
shareholders. 
 
         In May 1998,  the Company  closed an  offe ring  of 3,151  newly  issued 
shares of its Class A Common Stock for net proceeds  of $42,498. 
 
         In 1999,  the  Company  authorized  15 sha res of Series M,  Redeemable, 
Convertible  Preferred  Stock  ("Series M  Preferre d  Stock").  In May 1999,  in 
connection with the acquisition of Moreland Automot ive Group, the Company issued 
10.4 shares of Series M Preferred Stock. The Series  M Preferred Stock votes with 
Class A Common Stock on an as if converted  basis.  The Series M Preferred Stock 



is  convertible  into Class A Common  Stock at the option of the  Company at any 
time and at the option of the holder under limited  circumstances.  The Series M 
Preferred  Stock is  redeemable  at the  option  of  the  Company.  The  Series M 
Preferred  Stock  converts  into Class A Common  St ock  based on a formula  that 
divides the average Class A Common Stock price for a certain  15-day period into 
one  thousand  and then  multiplies  by the number of Series M Preferred  Shares 
being  converted.  The  Series  M  Preferred  Stock   does  not  have a  dividend 
preference,  but  participates in any dividends on an as if converted basis. The 
Series M Preferred Stock has a $1 per share liquida tion preference. 
 
         In the first quarter of 2000,  the Company  issued 304 shares of Class A 
Common  Stock and 4.5  shares of Series M  Preferre d  Stock in order to  satisfy 
contingent payout requirements related to the Morel and acquisition. 
 
 
 
(9)      INCOME TAXES 
 
         Income tax expense for 2000, 1999 and 1998  was as follows: 
 
        Year Ended December 31,                 200 0           1999           1998 
        -------------------------------       ----- -----     ----------     ---------- 
        Current: 
           Federal                         $   12,7 05     $   10,382     $    5,387 
           State                                2,1 94          1,979          1,041 
                                              ----- -----     ----------     ---------- 
                                               14,8 99         12,361          6,428 
                                              ----- -----     ----------     ---------- 
        Deferred: 
           Federal                                3 28            411            436 
           State                                   (5)           105            129 
                                              ----- -----     ----------     ---------- 
                                                  3 23            516            565 
                                              ----- -----     ----------     ---------- 
                  Total                    $   15,2 22     $   12,877     $    6,993 
                                              ===== =====     ==========     ========== 
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         Individually  significant  components  of the  deferred  tax assets and 
liabilities are presented below: 
 
 
 
        December 31,                                       2000             1999 
        -------------------------------------------      -----------      ----------- 
        Deferred tax assets: 
           Allowance and accruals                    $     2,164      $     2,457 
           Deferred revenue                                2,786            2,931 
                                                        -----------      ----------- 
               Total deferred tax assets                   4,950            5,388 
                                                        -----------      ----------- 
 
        Deferred tax liabilities: 
           LIFO recapture and acquired LIFO 
            inventories differences                       (7,555)          (8,657) 
           Employee benefit plans                         (1,084)            (625) 
           Goodwill                                       (4,544)          (2,797) 
           Property and equipment, principally 
            due to differences in depreciation            (1,300)          (2,106) 
                                                        -----------      ----------- 
               Total deferred tax liabilities            (14,483)         (14,185) 
                                                        -----------      ----------- 
                  Total                              $    (9,533)     $    (8,797) 



                                                        ===========      =========== 
 
 
         The  reconciliation  between amounts  comp uted using the federal income 
tax rate of 35% and the Company's  income tax expen se for 2000, 1999 and 1998 is 
shown in the following tabulation. 
 
 
 
    For the Year Ended December 31,                       2000         1999         1998 
    ----------------------------------------------- -    ---------    ---------     -------- 
    Computed "expected" tax expense                  $   13,837   $   11,218    $   6,224 
    State taxes, net of federal income tax benefit        1,464        1,311          751 
    Nondeductible goodwill                                  443          261            - 
    Other                                                  (522)          87           18 
                                                        ---------    ---------     -------- 
    Income tax expense                               $   15,222   $   12,877    $   6,993 
                                                        =========    =========     ======== 
 
 
(10)     COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
         Recourse Paper 
         -------------- 
 
 
         The Company is contingently  liable to ban ks for recourse paper assumed 
at the time of acquisition when the Company does a corporate purchase. Following 
the acquisition,  the Company does not enter into f urther recourse transactions. 
The contingent  liability at December 31, 2000 and 1999 was  approximately  $907 
and $3,421, respectively. 
 
         The Company's  potential loss is limited t o the difference  between the 
present value of the installment  contract at the d ate of the  repossession  and 
the  amount  for which  the  vehicle  is  resold.  Based  upon  historical  loss 
percentages,  an  estimated  loss  reserve of $540 and $668 is  reflected in the 
Company's  consolidated  balance  sheets  as of  De cember  31,  2000  and  1999, 
respectively.  The reserves were  established as a purchase price  adjustment as 
the result of several acquisitions. 
 
        Leases 
        ------ 
 
         Substantially  all of the Company's  opera tions are conducted in leased 
facilities under noncancelable  operating leases. T hese leases expire at various 
dates through 2020.  Certain lease commitments are subject to escalation clauses 
of an amount  equal to the cost of living based on the  "Consumer  Price Index - 
U.S. Cities Average - All Items for all Urban  Cons umers"  published by the U.S. 
Department of Labor.  The Company also leases  cert ain  equipment  under capital 
leases. 
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         The minimum lease payments under the opera ting and capital leases after 
December 31, 2000 are as follows: 
 
 
 
         Year ending December 31,                           Operating         Capital 
         ------------------------------------------ -----   -------------    ------------- 
         2001                                            $    12,618      $        99 
         2002                                                 12,039               76 
         2003                                                 11,230               54 
         2004                                                 10,897                0 
         2005                                                 10,495                0 



         Thereafter                                           48,947                0 
                                                           -------------    ------------- 
         Total minimum lease payments                    $   106,226              229 
                                                           ============= 
         Less amounts representing interest                                       (22) 
                                                                            ------------- 
         Present value of future minimum lease paym ents                   $       207 
                                                                            ============= 
 
 
 
         Rental expense for all operating leases wa s $13,757,  $9,639 and $5,659 
for the years ended December 31, 2000, 1999 and 199 8, respectively. 
 
         Capital Commitments 
         ------------------- 
 
         At  December  31,  2000,   the  Company  h ad  capital   commitments  of 
approximately $14,900 for the construction of six n ew dealership facilities,  of 
which  $14,200 is  anticipated  to be  incurred  th rough the end of 2001 and the 
balance in 2002. Approximately $2,700 has already b een paid out of existing cash 
balances.  The Company expects to pay for the  cons truction out of existing cash 
balances until completion of the projects, at which  time it anticipates securing 
long-term financing for 90% to 100% of the amounts from third party lenders. 
 
         Litigation 
         ---------- 
 
         The Company is involved in various claims and legal actions  arising in 
the ordinary  course of  business.  In the opinion of  management,  the ultimate 
disposition  of these  matters  will not have a mat erial  adverse  effect on the 
Company's financial position, results of operations  or liquidity. 
 
(11)     PROFIT SHARING PLAN 
 
         The  Company  has  a  defined  contributio n  plan  and  trust  covering 
substantially all full-time employees. The annual c ontribution to the plan is at 
the discretion of the Board of Directors of the Com pany.  Contributions of $166, 
$591 and $285 were  recognized for the years ended  December 31, 2000,  1999 and 
1998,  respectively.   Employees  may  contribute  to  the  plan  under  certain 
circumstances. 
 
(12)     STOCK INCENTIVE PLANS 
 
         The Company's  1996 Stock  Incentive  Plan , as amended,  allows for the 
granting of up to 1,700  incentive and  nonqualifie d  stock options to officers, 
key employees and consultants of the Company and it s subsidiaries. The Company's 
Non-Discretionary  Stock Option Plan for  Non-Emplo yee  Directors allows for the 
granting  of 15  shares.  The  plans  are  administ ered  by  the  Board  or by a 
Compensation   Committee  of  the  Board  and  perm its  accelerated  vesting  of 
outstanding  options upon the  occurrence  of certa in  changes in control of the 
Company.  Options become  exercisable  over a perio d of up to ten years from the 
date of grant and at exercise prices as determined by the Board. At December 31, 
2000,  1,433 shares of Class A Common Stock were re served for issuance under the 
plans, of which 227 shares were available for futur e grant. 
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         Activity under the plans is as follows: 
 
 
 
                                        Shares        Shares Subject     Weighted Average 
                                      Available         to Options        Exercise Price 
                                      for Grant 



                                     -------------    ----------------   ------------------ 
Balances, December 31, 1997                201                433            $ 3.41 
Additional shares reserved                 415                 -                 - 
Options granted                           (155)               155             14.65 
Options canceled                            34                (34)            16.22 
Options exercised                            -                 (6)             3.02 
                                     -------------    ----------------   ------------------ 
Balances, December 31, 1998                495                548              5.80 
Additional shares reserved                 615                 -                 - 
Options granted                           (257)               257             17.84 
Options canceled                             9                 (9)            15.89 
Options exercised                            -                (35)             3.98 
                                     -------------    ----------------   ------------------ 
Balances, December 31, 1999                862                761              9.84 
Options granted                           (708)               708             13.27 
Options canceled                            73                (73)            14.05 
Options exercised                           -                (190)             3.20 
                                     -------------    ----------------   ------------------ 
Balances, December 31, 2000                227              1,206            $12.65 
                                     =============    ================   ================== 
 
 
         The Board of Directors  approved the issua nce of non-qualified  options 
during 2000 to certain  members of senior  manageme nt  at an  exercise  price of 
$1.00 per share.  These  options were issued with  five-year  cliff vesting as a 
means to  encourage  long-term  employment  from  c ertain  members of the senior 
management group. Compensation expense, which is eq ual to the difference between 
the market price and the exercise  price,  is  reco gnized  ratably in accordance 
with the vesting schedules. 
 
         In 1998,  the Board of  Directors  of the Company and the  shareholders 
approved the  implementation  of an Employee  Stock  Purchase Plan (the "Purchase 
Plan"),  and reserved a total of 250 shares of Clas s A Common Stock for issuance 
under the Purchase Plan. In 2000, the  shareholders   approved an increase in the 
total number of shares of Class A Common Stock  res erved for issuance  under the 
Purchase  Plan to 500  shares.  The  Purchase  Plan  is intended to qualify as an 
"Employee Stock Purchase Plan" under Section 423 of  the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986,  as amended,  and is  administered  by the  C ompensation  Committee of the 
Board.  Eligible employees are entitled to invest u p to 10 percent of their base 
pay for the purchase of stock. The purchase price f or shares purchased under the 
Purchase  Plan is 85  percent  of the  lesser  of t he fair  market  value at the 
beginning or end of the purchase  period. A total o f 134, 50 and 9 shares of the 
Company's  Class A Common Stock were issued under t he Purchase Plan during 2000, 
1999 and 1998, respectively, and 307 remained avail able for issuance at December 
31, 2000. 
 
         During 1995, the Financial  Accounting Sta ndards Board issued Statement 
of  Financial   Accounting   Standards  No.  123  A ccounting   for   Stock-Based 
Compensation  (SFAS 123),  which defines a fair val ue based method of accounting 
for employee stock options and similar equity  inst ruments.  As permitted  under 
SFAS 123,  the Company  has  elected to continue to  account for its  stock-based 
compensation  plans under  Accounting  Principal Bo ard Opinion No. 25 Accounting 
for  Stock   Issued  to  Employees   (APB  25),  an d  related   interpretations. 
Accordingly,  no  compensation  expense has been  r ecognized for the Plan or the 
Purchase Plan (collectively the "Plans"). 
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         The Company has computed,  for pro forma d isclosure purposes, the value 
of options granted under the Plans, using the Black -Scholes option pricing model 
as prescribed by SFAS 123, using the weighted avera ge  assumptions for grants as 
follows: 
 
 
 



    For the Year Ended December 31,               2 000           1999          1998 
    ----------------------------------------   ---- -------    -----------   ------------ 
 
    Risk-free interest rate                         6.50%          5.50%          5.50% 
    Expected dividend yield                         0.00%          0.00%          0.00% 
    Expected lives                              7.0  years      7.0 years      6.7 years 
    Expected volatility                            47.47%         49.91%         53.41% 
 
 
         Using the Black-Scholes methodology, the t otal value of options granted 
during 2000, 1999 and 1998 was $6,486,  $2,910 and $1,119,  respectively,  which 
would be amortized on a pro forma basis over the ve sting  period of the options, 
typically four to five years. The weighted average fair value of options granted 
during 2000, 1999 and 1998 was $7.79,  $9.17 and $8 .61 per share,  respectively. 
If the Company had accounted for its stock-based co mpensation plan in accordance 
with  SFAS 123,  the  Company's  net  income  and n et  income  per  share  would 
approximate the pro forma disclosures below: 
 
 
 
For the Year Ended 
December 31,                      2000                     1999                     1998 
----------------------    ---------------------    ----------------------   ---------------------
                          As          Pro Forma    As           Pro Forma   As           Pro 
                          Reported                 Reported                 Reported      Forma  
                          ---------   ---------    ---------    ---------   ---------    --------
Net income                $24,313     $22,028      $19,174      $17,965     $10,789      $10,227
Basic net income per 
  share                     $1.95       $1.77        $1.72        $1.61       $1.18        $1.12
Diluted net income 
  per share                 $1.76       $1.66        $1.60        $1.52       $1.14        $1.09
 
 
 
         The following table  summarizes  stock opt ions  outstanding at December 
31, 2000: 
 
 
 
                      Options Outstanding                             Options Exercisable 
--------------------------------------------------- -------------   --------------------------- 
                                      Weighted 
                                      Average        Weighted       Number of      Weighted 
   Range of           Number         Remaining       Average          Shares       Average 
   Exercise        Outstanding      Contractual      Exercise      Exercisable     Exercise 
    Prices         at 12/31/00      Life (years)       Price       at 12/31/00       Price 
---------------    -------------    -------------    -----------   -------------   ----------- 
      $    1.00          93             8.9            $ 1.00             18         $1.00 
           3.02         150             3.3              3.02            103          3.02 
  10.75 - 11.82         257             9.5             11.72             30         11.40 
  12.68 - 14.32          49             7.8             13.46             18         13.21 
  14.68 - 16.50         293             6.8             15.71             83         15.74 
  16.75 - 18.43         273             8.1             16.99             13         16.81 
  18.94 - 20.83          91             7.0             19.66             28         19.76 
---------------    -------------    -------------    -----------   -------------   ----------- 
  $1.00 - 20.83       1,206             7.5            $12.65            293        $10.17 
===============    =============    =============    ===========   =============   =========== 
 
 
         At December 31, 1999 and 1998,  296 and 23 9 shares were  exercisable at 
weighted average exercise prices of $4.60 and $3.44 , respectively. 
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(13)     RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 



 
         Lithia Properties, LLC, owned certain of t he real property on which the 
Company's  business  is  located.  The  Company  ow ns a 20%  interest  in Lithia 
Properties,  LLC.  The  Company  leased  such  faci lities  under  various  lease 
agreements from Lithia  Properties,  LLC.  Selling,   general and  administrative 
expense  includes  rental  expense of $19,  $706 an d $1,464 for the years  ended 
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively rela ting to these properties. 
 
         In June 1999, Lithia Properties, LLC compl eted its sale of certain real 
estate holdings in the Southern Oregon region to Ca pital  Automotive Real Estate 
Investment Trust  ("Capital"),  an unrelated party,  for $18,300.  As a result of 
this sale, the Company  received a distribution  fo r its portion of the realized 
gain, totaling  approximately  $1,246,  which is be ing realized ratably over the 
12-year  life of the new lease.  The  Company now l eases  such  properties  from 
Capital for amounts that are not  materially  diffe rent  from the lease  amounts 
under the previous lease agreements. 
 
         The Company provides  management  services  to Lithia  Properties,  LLC. 
Other  income  includes  management  fees of $1, $7  and $12 for the years  ended 
December 31, 2000, 1999 and 1998, respectively. 
 
         During 2000, 1999 and 1998,  Lithia Real E state,  Inc. paid Mark DeBoer 
Construction, Inc. $6,796, $2,649 and $314, respect ively, for remodeling certain 
of the Company's  facilities.  These amounts includ ed  $6,140,  $2,252 and $281, 
respectively,   paid  for  subcontractors  and  mat erials,  $32,  $171  and  $7, 
respectively for permits,  licenses,  travel and va rious miscellaneous fees, and 
$624, $226 and $26, respectively,  for contractor f ees. The Company believes the 
amount paid is fair in comparison with fees negotia ted  with  independent  third 
parties. 
 
         In May 1999,  the Company  purchased  cert ain  dealerships  owned by W. 
Douglas  Moreland for total  consideration of  appr oximately  $66,000,  at which 
time, Mr. Moreland  became a member of the Company' s Board of Directors.  During 
the normal course of business,  these  dealerships  paid $2,848 and $672 in 2000 
and 1999,  respectively,  to other  companies  owne d by Mr. Moreland for vehicle 
purchases,  recourse paid to a financial lender and  management fees. The Company 
also paid rental expense of $3,207 and $1,589 in 20 00 and 1999, respectively, to 
other companies owned by Mr. Moreland. 
 
         The terms of the acquisition  agreement wi th Mr. Moreland  provided for 
additional consideration to be paid if the acquired  entity results of operations 
exceeded certain targeted levels in 1999. Targeted levels were set substantially 
above  the  historical  experience  of  the  acquir ed  entity  at  the  time  of 
acquisition.  Such additional  consideration was pa id in cash and with shares of 
the Company's  stock and was recorded when earned i n the fourth  quarter of 1999 
as  additional  purchase  price.   Additional   con sideration  totaled  $18,000, 
including  $9,000 in cash,  $4,500 in Class A Commo n  Stock and $4,500 in stated 
value Series M Restricted Preferred Stock with a fa ir value of $2,700. 
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(14)     ACQUISITIONS 
 
         The  Company  acquired  eight  dealerships    during  2000,  with  total 
estimated 1999 revenues of  approximately  $254,000 .  None of acquisitions  were 
individually  significant  and  all of  them  were  accounted  for  as  purchase 
transactions. 
 
         Significant acquisitions in 1999 and 1998 were as follows: 
 
         In May 1999,  the Company  acquired all of  the stock of seven  commonly 
controlled  automotive  dealerships  constituting t he Moreland  Automotive Group 
("Moreland") for approximately  $19,689 in cash (wh ich is net of $16,007 of cash 
acquired),  1,273 shares of the  Company's  Class A  Common Stock with a value of 
approximately  $24,100 at the time of issuance,  an d 10 shares of Lithia's newly 



created  Series M Preferred  Stock with a value of  approximately  $6,200 at the 
time of  issuance.  At  closing,  Moreland  had  ap proximately  $18,200  of used 
vehicles available for flooring under the Company's  used vehicle line of credit, 
reducing  the net  investment  in the acquired  dea lerships  by that amount to a 
total  of  $47,800.   Based  on  the  Moreland  dea lerships   achieving  certain 
performance  targets  for  1999,  additional   cons ideration  totaling  $18,000, 
including  $9,000 in cash,  $4,500 in Class A Commo n  Stock and $4,500 in stated 
value Series M Preferred Stock with a fair value of  $2,700 was paid and recorded 
as additional purchase price. 
 
         In October 1998, the Company acquired the net assets of Camp Automotive 
for total  consideration  of  $11,535,  including  $8,000 in cash and  $3,535 of 
assumed debt. 
 
         Unaudited pro forma results of operations  including  Camp  Automotive, 
Inc. and Moreland Automotive are as follows. The re sults of operations for other 
acquisitions are not included in the unaudited pro forma information as they are 
not materially different from actual results of the  Company. 
 
 
 
    Year Ended December 31,                 1999           1998 
    ---------------------------------    ---------- --   ------------ 
    Total revenues                        $1,409,40 4     $1,157,345 
    Net income                                21,00 9         12,176 
    Basic earnings per share                    1.8 1           1.17 
    Diluted earnings per share                  1.6 5           1.07 
 
 
         The unaudited pro forma results are not ne cessarily  indicative of what 
actually would have occurred had the acquisitions  been in effect for the entire 
periods  presented.  In addition,  they are not  in tended to be a projection  of 
future results that may be achieved from the combin ed  operations.  The 1998 pro 
forma  results of  operations  include  bonuses  pa id by Moreland to its owners. 
Excluding such bonuses, which would not have been p aid under Lithia's ownership, 
the acquisition would have been accretive to Lithia 's 1998 earnings. 
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                                                                 EXHIBIT 10.13.2 
 
                      SECOND AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AG REEMENT 
                     (Acquisition Revolving Line of  Credit) 
 
 
         THIS SECOND  AMENDMENT TO CREDIT  AGREEMEN T (this  "Amendment"),  dated 
effective as of December 1, 2000,  is by and betwee n  LITHIA  MOTORS,  INC.,  an 
Oregon  corporation  ("Borrower"),  whose  address is 360 East  Jackson  Street, 
Medford,  Oregon 97501,  and FORD MOTOR CREDIT COMP ANY,  a Delaware  corporation 
("Lender"),  whose  address  is 13555 S.E.  36th  S treet,  Suite 280,  Bellevue, 
Washington 98006 ("Lender's Address"). 
 
         WHEREAS,  pursuant  to the terms of a cert ain  Credit  Agreement  dated 
November 23,  1998,  as amended by that  certain  A mendment to Credit  Agreement 
dated  February 24, 2000 (as amended,  the  "Agreem ent"),  Lender made a loan to 
Borrower in the original principal amount of $75,00 0,000.00  (the "Original Loan 
"); and 
 
         WHEREAS,  the Original Loan is evidenced b y a certain  Promissory  Note 
dated November 23, 1998, made by Borrower to the or der of Lender in the original 
principal  amount of  $75,000,000.00,  as amended a nd  restated by that  certain 
Amended & Restated Promissory Note dated February 2 4, 2000, made by Borrower 
to the order of Lender in the principal amount of $ 115,000,000.00 (the "Original 
Note"); and 
 



         WHEREAS, Borrower has requested an increas e in the principal balance of 
the  Original  Loan to  $130,000,000.00  to  provid e  financing  for  Borrower's 
Permitted Acquisition of Dealership Guarantors (as defined herein) and a renewal 
of the Original Loan,  pursuant to the terms of a c ertain Amended  &Restated 
Promissory Note in the principal amount of $130,000 ,000.00 dated as of even date 
herewith  and made by Borrower to the order of Lend er  (the  "Amended  Note" and 
with the Original Note collectively referred to as the "Note"); and 
 
         WHEREAS, Lender is willing to increase the  Original Loan if and only if 
(i) Borrower  executes this Amendment and the Amend ed Note, (ii) each Dealership 
Guarantor reaffirms its obligations under its Deale rship Guaranty and Dealership 
Security Agreement and under the Contribution  Agre ement (each as defined in the 
Agreement),   (iii)  the  Loan   continues   to  be    cross-collateralized   and 
cross-defaulted  with other Indebtedness of Borrowe r and Dealership  Guarantors, 
and (iii) Lithia Real  Estate,  Inc.  executes a se curity  agreement in favor of 
Lender. 
 
         NOW THEREFORE,  in consideration of the pr emises and for other good and 
valuable  consideration,   the  receipt  and  suffi ciency  of  which  is  hereby 
acknowledged, the Agreement is hereby amended as fo llows: 
 
         1. Except as modified herein,  all capital ized terms used herein and in 
the  foregoing  recitals  have the meanings set for th in the  Agreement  and the 
Note. The following amendments are effective as of December 1, 2000. 
 
         2. The term  "Loan"  shall  mean the  Orig inal  Loan as amended by this 
Amendment. 
 
                                       1 
 
 
         3. Section 1.1 (g) of the Agreement,  enti tled  "Applicable  Commercial 
Paper Rate" is hereby  deleted in its entirety and the following is  substituted 
therefore: 
 
         "(g) "Applicable  LIBOR Rate" means the LI BOR Rate plus two and seventy 
five hundredths (2.75%)per annum." 
 
         4. Section 1.1 (x) of the Agreement,  enti tled  "Commercial Paper Rate" 
is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following  is substituted therefore: 
 
         "(x) "LIBOR Rate" means,  for any given ca lendar  month,  the per annum 
interest  rate  reported on the first  Business Day  of the  particular  calendar 
month under the Money Rates Column of The Wall Stre et Journal as the three month 
London Interbank Offered Rate on the last Business Day of the preceding calendar 
month,  or,  if The Wall  Street  Journal  is  unav ailable  for any  reason,  as 
published in such other publication as the Lender m ay designate." 
 
         5. Section 1.1(z) of the  Agreement,  enti tled  "Commitment"  is hereby 
deleted in its entirety and the following is substi tuted therefor: 
 
         "(z)  "Commitment"  means the lesser of (i )  $130,000,000.00  minus the 
amount of any  Decision  Reserve  in effect  from t ime to time or (ii) any lower 
amount Borrower may have elected pursuant to Sectio n 2.3 hereof." 
 
         6. Section 1.1 (aa) of the Agreement, enti tled "Consolidated Net Worth" 
is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following  is substituted therefore: 
 
         "(aa)  "Consolidated Net Worth" means, at a particular date, the amount 
by which the total consolidated assets (other than amounts for Equipment granted 
as security to a lender other than Lender, and amou nts for real estate mortgaged 
to a lender other than Lender) of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries 
exceeds the total consolidated liabilities (other t han liabilities for Equipment 
and liabilities for real estate mortgaged to a lend er other than Lender)." 
 
         7. Section 1.1(rrr) of the Agreement, enti tled "Note" is hereby deleted 



in its entirety and the following is substituted th erefor: 
 
         "(rrr) "Note" means  collectively,  that c ertain  Promissory Note dated 
November 23, 1998, from Borrower to the order of Le nder in the principal  amount 
of  $75,000,000.00,  as amended by the Amended &  R estated  Promissory  Note 
dated February 24 2000 in the principal amount of $ 115,000,000.00, as amended by 
the Amended &  Restated Promissory Note dated as of  December 1, 2000, in the 
principal amount of $130,000,000.00 as it may be am ended,  restated or otherwise 
modified and in effect from time to time." 
 
         8. Section 1.1(vvvv) of the Agreement,  en titled  "Termination Date" is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and the following is  substituted therefor: 
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         "(vvvv) "Termination Date" means the earli er of (a) December 1, 2003 or 
(b) the date of termination of the Commitment  purs uant to either of Section 2.3 
or Section 7.1 hereof." 
 
         9. Section 2.4 of the  Agreement is hereby   amended and restated in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
         "2.4  Method  of  Borrowing.   The  Borrow er   shall  give  the  Lender 
irrevocable  notice in substantially  the form of E xhibit B hereto (a "Borrowing 
Notice") not later than 10:00 a.m.  (Eastern  Stand ard Time) on the business day 
preceding the Borrowing Date of each Advance, speci fying: (i) the Borrowing Date 
(which shall be a business  day) of such Advance;  (ii) the aggregate  amount of 
such Advance; (iii) the use of proceeds of such Adv ance, and (iv) the account or 
accounts  into which the  Advances  should be  fund ed.  Not later than 2:00 p.m. 
(Eastern  Standard Time) on each Borrowing Date, th e Lender shall make available 
its Advance,  in funds immediately  available to th e Borrower at such account or 
accounts  as shall have been  notified to the Lende r.  Each  Advance  shall bear 
interest  from and  including the date of the makin g of such Advance to (but not 
including) the date of repayment thereof at the App licable LIBOR Rate,  changing 
when and as the  underlying  LIBOR Rate changes,  w hich such  interest  shall be 
payable in accordance with Section 2.9(B)." 
 
         10.  Section 2.6 of the Agreement is hereb y amended and restated in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
         "2.6 Default Rate;  Late Payment Fee.  Aft er the  occurrence and during 
the  continuance  of an Event of  Default,  at the  option  of the  Lender,  the 
interest  rate(s)  applicable to the Advances  shal l be equal to the  Applicable 
LIBOR Rate plus three percent (3.0%) per annum. If any of the principal  balance 
or interest on the Note or other sum due  thereunde r is not paid within ten (10) 
days of when due,  Borrower  shall pay to Lender a late charge  payment equal to 
five  percent  (5%)  of the  amount  of such  insta llment  or the  maximum  rate 
permitted by law, whichever is less." 
 
         11. Section 2.9 (b) (i) of the Agreement i s hereby amended and restated 
in its entirety as follows: 
 
         "(i)  Interest  payable on Advances.  Inte rest  accrued on each Advance 
shall be payable on each Payment  Date,  commencing   with the first such date to 
occur  after  the date  hereof  and at  maturity  ( whether  by  acceleration  or 
otherwise).  On each  Payment  Date,  the  Borrower   shall pay  interest  at the 
Applicable LIBOR Rate on each Advance outstanding o n such date." 
 
         12.  Schedule 4.8 attached  hereto (i) con tains a description as of the 
date of this  Amendment  of the  corporate  structu re  of the  Borrower  and its 
Subsidiaries  and  any  other  Person  in  which  t he  Borrower  or  any  of its 
Subsidiaries holds an Equity Interest;  and (ii) ac curately sets forth as of the 
date  of  this  Amendment  (A) the  correct  legal  name,  the  jurisdiction  of 
incorporation  or formation and the  jurisdictions in which each of the Borrower 
and the  Subsidiaries  of the Borrower is  qualifie d  to transact  business as a 



foreign  corporation or other foreign entity and (B ) a summary of the direct and 
indirect partnership,  joint venture, or other Equi ty Interests,  if any, of the 
Borrower  and  each  Subsidiary  of the  Borrower  in any  Person  that is not a 
corporation. 
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         13. Borrower hereby reaffirms each  repres entation and warranty made in 
the  Agreement  and  represents  that no Event of D efault or  Unmatured  Default 
exists. 
 
         14. The  security  interest  granted by  B orrower  to Lender  under the 
Borrower  Security  Agreement  and the  terms  and  conditions  of the  Borrower 
Security  Agreement  shall apply  equally to the  i ndebtedness  evidenced by the 
Note, and the covenants of the Borrower Security Ag reement and the Agreement, as 
amended  by this  Amendment  shall  remain in full  force and  effect  until the 
Principal  Balance of the Note and  interest  there on is paid in full and all of 
the obligations of Borrower to Lender under the Agr eement,  as amended,  and the 
Note are fully  performed  and  observed.  Except a s  otherwise  amended in this 
Amendment,  the terms and conditions of the Agreeme nt shall remain in full force 
and effect in accordance  with the provisions  ther eof.  The Loan may be further 
renewed  or  extended  only upon such terms and  co nditions  and at such rate of 
interest as the parties hereby may agree upon in wr iting. Furthermore,  Borrower 
hereby reaffirms its obligations under the Borrower  Guaranty. 
 
         NOTICE:  UNDER OREGON LAW, MOST  AGREEMENT S,  PROMISES AND  COMMITMENTS 
         MADE BY US AFTER  OCTOBER 3, 1989,  CONCER NING  LOANS AND OTHER  CREDIT 
         EXTENSIONS WHICH ARE NOT FOR PERSONAL,  FA MILY OR HOUSEHOLD PURPOSES OR 
         SECURED SOLELY BY THE BORROWER'S RESIDENCE  MUST BE IN WRITING,  EXPRESS 
         CONSIDERATION AND BE SIGNED BY US TO BE EN FORCEABLE. 
 
 
                         [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTI ONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower and Lender ha ve executed this Amendment as 
of the date set forth above intending to be legally  bound hereby. 
 
 
                                                FOR D MOTOR CREDIT COMPANY, 
                                                a  Delaware corporation 
 
                                             By:/s/  B. W. Evans 
                                                --- ----------------------------- 
                                                B. W. Evans 
                                                Nat ional Account Manager 
 
 
                                                 LI THIA MOTORS, INC., 
                                                 an  Oregon corporation 
 
 
 
 
 
                                              By:/s / M. L. Dick Heimann 
                                                 -- ----------------------------- 
                                                 M.  L. Dick Heimann 
                                                 Pr esident 
 
 
 
                                        Attest: /s/  Sidney B. DeBoer 



                                                --- ---------------------------- 
                                                Sid ney B. DeBoer 
                                                Sec retary 
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                                                                 EXHIBIT 10.14.2 
 
                      SECOND AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AG REEMENT 
                     (Used Vehicle Revolving Line o f Credit) 
 
 
         THIS SECOND  AMENDMENT TO CREDIT  AGREEMEN T (this  "Amendment"),  dated 
effective as of December 1, 2000,  is by and betwee n  LITHIA  MOTORS,  INC.,  an 
Oregon  corporation  ("Borrower"),  whose  address is 360 East  Jackson  Street, 
Medford,  Oregon 97501,  and FORD MOTOR CREDIT COMP ANY,  a Delaware  corporation 
("Lender"),  whose  address  is 13555 S.E.  36th  S treet,  Suite 280,  Bellevue, 
Washington 98006 ("Lender's Address"). 
 
         WHEREAS,  pursuant  to the terms of a cert ain  Credit  Agreement  dated 
November 23,  1998,  as amended by that  certain  A mendment to Credit  Agreement 
dated  February 24, 2000 (as amended,  the  "Agreem ent"),  Lender made a loan to 
Borrower in the  original  principal  amount of  $6 0,000,000.00  (the  "Original 
Loan"); and 
 
         WHEREAS,  the Original Loan is evidenced b y a certain  Promissory  Note 
dated November 23, 1998, made by Borrower to the or der of Lender in the original 
principal  amount of  $60,000,000.00,  as amended a nd  restated by that  certain 
Amended & Restated Promissory Note dated February 2 4, 2000, made by Borrower 
to the order of Lender in the principal amount of $ 85,000,000.00  (the "Original 
Note"); and 
 
         WHEREAS, Borrower has requested an increas e in the principal balance of 
the  Original  Loan to  $150,000,000.00  to  provid e  financing  for  Borrower's 
Permitted Acquisition of Dealership Guarantors (as defined herein) and a renewal 
of the Original Loan,  pursuant to the terms of a c ertain Amended & Restated 
Promissory Note in the principal amount of $150,000 ,000.00 dated as of even date 
herewith  and made by Borrower to the order of Lend er  (the  "Amended  Note" and 
with the Original Note collectively referred to as the "Note"); and 
 
         WHEREAS, Lender is willing to increase the  Original Loan if and only if 
(i) Borrower  executes this Amendment and the Amend ed Note, (ii) each Dealership 
Guarantor reaffirms its obligations under its Deale rship Guaranty and Dealership 
Security Agreement and under the Contribution  Agre ement (each as defined in the 
Agreement),   (iii)  the  Loan   continues   to  be    cross-collateralized   and 
cross-defaulted  with other Indebtedness of Borrowe r and Dealership  Guarantors, 
and (iii) Lithia Real  Estate,  Inc.  executes a se curity  agreement in favor of 
Lender. 
 
         NOW THEREFORE,  in consideration of the pr emises and for other good and 
valuable  consideration,   the  receipt  and  suffi ciency  of  which  is  hereby 
acknowledged, the Agreement is hereby amended as fo llows: 
 
         1. Except as modified herein,  all capital ized terms used herein and in 
the  foregoing  recitals  have the meanings set for th in the  Agreement  and the 
Note. The following amendments are effective as of December 1, 2000. 
 
         2. The term  "Loan"  shall  mean the  Orig inal  Loan as amended by this 
Amendment. 
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         3. Section 1.1 (g) of the Agreement,  enti tled  "Applicable  Commercial 
Paper Rate" is hereby  deleted in its entirety and the following is  substituted 



therefore: 
 
         "(g)  "Applicable  LIBOR  Rate" means the LIBOR Rate plus two and fifty 
five hundredths (2.55%)per annum." 
 
         4. Section 1.1 (y) of the Agreement,  enti tled  "Commercial Paper Rate" 
is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following  is substituted therefore: 
 
         "(x) "LIBOR Rate" means,  for any given ca lendar  month,  the per annum 
interest  rate  reported on the first  Business Day  of the  particular  calendar 
month under the Money Rates Column of The Wall Stre et Journal as the three month 
London Interbank Offered Rate on the last Business Day of the preceding calendar 
month,  or,  if The Wall  Street  Journal  is  unav ailable  for any  reason,  as 
published in such other publication as the Lender m ay designate." 
 
         5. Section  1.1(aa) of the Agreement,  ent itled  "Commitment" is hereby 
deleted in its entirety and the following is substi tuted therefor: 
 
         "(aa)  "Commitment" means the lesser of (i )  $150,000,000.00  minus the 
amount of any  Decision  Reserve  in effect  from t ime to time or (ii) any lower 
amount Borrower may have elected pursuant to Sectio n 2.3 hereof." 
 
         6. Section 1.1 (bb) of the Agreement, enti tled "Consolidated Net Worth" 
is hereby deleted in its entirety and the following  is substituted therefore: 
 
         "(aa)  "Consolidated Net Worth" means, at a particular date, the amount 
by which the total consolidated assets (other than amounts for Equipment granted 
as security to a lender other than Lender, and amou nts for real estate mortgaged 
to a lender other than Lender) of the Borrower and its consolidated Subsidiaries 
exceeds the total consolidated liabilities (other t han liabilities for Equipment 
and liabilities for real estate mortgaged to a lend er other than Lender)." 
 
         7. Section 1.1(rrr) of the Agreement, enti tled "Note" is hereby deleted 
in its entirety and the following is substituted th erefor: 
 
         "(rrr) "Note" means  collectively,  that c ertain  Promissory Note dated 
November 23, 1998, from Borrower to the order of Le nder in the principal  amount 
of  $60,000,000.00,  as amended by the Amended &  R estated  Promissory  Note 
dated February 24 2000 in the principal amount of $ 85,000,000.00,  as amended by 
the Amended & Restated Promissory Note dated  [____ _____________],  2000, in 
the  principal  amount  of  $150,000,00.00  as it m ay be  amended,  restated  or 
otherwise modified and in effect from time to time. " 
 
         8. Section 1.1(vvvv) of the Agreement,  en titled  "Termination Date" is 
hereby deleted in its entirety and the following is  substituted therefor: 
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         "(vvvv) "Termination Date" means the earli er of (a) December 1, 2003 or 
(b) the date of termination of the Commitment  purs uant to either of Section 2.3 
or Section 7.1 hereof." 
 
 
         9. Section 2.4 of the  Agreement is hereby   amended and restated in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
         "2.4  Method  of  Borrowing.   The  Borrow er   shall  give  the  Lender 
irrevocable  notice in substantially  the form of E xhibit B hereto (a "Borrowing 
Notice") not later than 10:00 a.m.  (Eastern  Stand ard Time) on the business day 
preceding the Borrowing Date of each Advance, speci fying: (i) the Borrowing Date 
(which shall be a business  day) of such Advance;  (ii) the aggregate  amount of 
such Advance; (iii) the use of proceeds of such Adv ance, and (iv) the account or 
accounts  into which the  Advances  should be  fund ed.  Not later than 2:00 p.m. 
(Eastern  Standard Time) on each Borrowing Date, th e Lender shall make available 
its Advance,  in funds immediately  available to th e Borrower at such account or 



accounts  as shall have been  notified to the Lende r.  Each  Advance  shall bear 
interest  from and  including the date of the makin g of such Advance to (but not 
including) the date of repayment thereof at the App licable LIBOR Rate,  changing 
when and as the  underlying  LIBOR Rate changes,  w hich such  interest  shall be 
payable in accordance with Section 2.9(B)." 
 
         10.  Section 2.6 of the Agreement is hereb y amended and restated in its 
entirety as follows: 
 
         "2.6 Default Rate;  Late Payment Fee.  Aft er the  occurrence and during 
the  continuance  of an Event of  Default,  at the  option  of the  Lender,  the 
interest  rate(s)  applicable to the Advances  shal l be equal to the  Applicable 
LIBOR Rate plus three percent (3.0%) per annum. If any of the principal  balance 
or interest on the Note or other sum due  thereunde r is not paid within ten (10) 
days of when due,  Borrower  shall pay to Lender a late charge  payment equal to 
five  percent  (5%)  of the  amount  of such  insta llment  or the  maximum  rate 
permitted by law, whichever is less." 
 
         11. Section 2.9 (b) (i) of the Agreement i s hereby amended and restated 
in its entirety as follows: 
 
         "(i)  Interest  payable on Advances.  Inte rest  accrued on each Advance 
shall be payable on each Payment  Date,  commencing   with the first such date to 
occur  after  the date  hereof  and at  maturity  ( whether  by  acceleration  or 
otherwise).  On each  Payment  Date,  the  Borrower   shall pay  interest  at the 
Applicable LIBOR Rate on each Advance outstanding o n such date." 
 
         12.  Schedule 4.8 attached  hereto (i) con tains a description as of the 
date of this  Amendment  of the  corporate  structu re  of the  Borrower  and its 
Subsidiaries  and  any  other  Person  in  which  t he  Borrower  or  any  of its 
Subsidiaries holds an Equity Interest;  and (ii) ac curately sets forth as of the 
date  of  this  Amendment  (A) the  correct  legal  name,  the  jurisdiction  of 
incorporation  or formation and the  jurisdictions in which each of the Borrower 
and the  Subsidiaries  of the Borrower is  qualifie d  to transact  business as a 
foreign  corporation or other foreign entity and (B ) a summary of the direct and 
indirect partnership,  joint venture, or other Equi ty Interests,  if any, of the 
Borrower  and  each  Subsidiary  of the  Borrower  in any  Person  that is not a 
corporation. 
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         13. Borrower hereby reaffirms each  repres entation and warranty made in 
the  Agreement  and  represents  that no Event of D efault or  Unmatured  Default 
exists. 
 
         14. The  security  interest  granted by  B orrower  to Lender  under the 
Borrower  Security  Agreement  and the  terms  and  conditions  of the  Borrower 
Security  Agreement  shall apply  equally to the  i ndebtedness  evidenced by the 
Note, and the covenants of the Borrower Security Ag reement and the Agreement, as 
amended  by this  Amendment  shall  remain in full  force and  effect  until the 
Principal  Balance of the Note and  interest  there on is paid in full and all of 
the obligations of Borrower to Lender under the Agr eement,  as amended,  and the 
Note are fully  performed  and  observed.  Except a s  otherwise  amended in this 
Amendment,  the terms and conditions of the Agreeme nt shall remain in full force 
and effect in accordance  with the provisions  ther eof.  The Loan may be further 
renewed  or  extended  only upon such terms and  co nditions  and at such rate of 
interest as the parties hereby may agree upon in wr iting. Furthermore,  Borrower 
hereby reaffirms its obligations under the Borrower  Guaranty. 
 
         NOTICE:  UNDER OREGON LAW, MOST  AGREEMENT S,  PROMISES AND  COMMITMENTS 
         MADE BY US AFTER  OCTOBER 3, 1989,  CONCER NING  LOANS AND OTHER  CREDIT 
         EXTENSIONS WHICH ARE NOT FOR PERSONAL,  FA MILY OR HOUSEHOLD PURPOSES OR 
         SECURED SOLELY BY THE BORROWER'S RESIDENCE  MUST BE IN WRITING,  EXPRESS 
         CONSIDERATION AND BE SIGNED BY US TO BE EN FORCEABLE. 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
                         [REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTI ONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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         IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Borrower and Lender ha ve executed this Amendment as 
of the date set forth above intending to be legally  bound hereby. 
 
 
                                                FOR D MOTOR CREDIT COMPANY, 
                                                a  Delaware corporation 
 
                                             By:/s/  B. W. Evans 
                                                --- ----------------------------- 
                                                B. W. Evans 
                                                Nat ional Account Manager 
 
 
                                                 LI THIA MOTORS, INC., 
                                                 an  Oregon corporation 
 
 
 
 
 
                                              By:/s / M. L. Dick Heimann 
                                                 -- ----------------------------- 
                                                 M.  L. Dick Heimann 
                                                 Pr esident 
 
 
 
                                        Attest: /s/  Sidney B. DeBoer 
                                                --- ---------------------------- 
                                                Sid ney B. DeBoer 
                                                Sec retary 
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                                                                 EXHIBIT 10.15.1 
 
                          ADMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEM ENT 
 
Dated as of:    March 6, 2000 
 
Parties:        LITHIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION ("LFC" ) 
 
                LITHIA MOTORS, INC. ("LMI") 
 
                LITHIA SALMIR, INC. ("LSI") 
 
And:           U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Len der") 
 
 
         This agreement  amends the loan agreement  between the parties dated as 



of September 20, 1999 ("Loan Agreement"). 
 
         For valuable consideration, the parties ag ree as follows: 
 
         1. Sections 13.1,  13.2, and 13.10 of the Loan Agreement are amended by 
deleting "it" at the beginning of each such section  and replacing it with "LFC". 
 
         2. Section 13.4 of the Loan  Agreement is amended (a) by deleting  "it" 
at the  beginning  thereof  and  replacing  it with   "LFC",  and (b) by deleting 
therefrom "except, with respect to LMI, for Permitt ed Acquisitions". 
 
         3. The following is hereby added to the Lo an Agreement as Section 10.13 
thereof: 
 
                  Year 2000.  Borrower  has  review ed  and assessed its business 
         operations and computer  systems and  appl ications to address the "year 
         2000 problem" (that is, that computer  app lications  and equipment used 
         by Borrower,  directly or indirectly  thro ugh third  parties,  may have 
         been or may be  unable to  properly  perfo rm  date-sensitive  functions 
         before,  during and after  January 1, 2000 ).  Borrower  represents  and 
         warrants  that the year 2000  problem has not  resulted in and will not 
         result in a material  adverse change in Bo rrower's  business  condition 
         (financial  or  otherwise),  operations,  properties  or  prospects  or 
         ability to repay Lender.  Borrower agrees that this  representation and 
         warranty  will be true  and  correct  on a nd  shall be  deemed  made by 
         Borrower on each date Borrower request any  advance under this Agreement 
         or any Note or  delivers  any  information   to  Lender.  Borrower  will 
         promptly   deliver  to  Lender  such   inf ormation   relating  to  this 
         representation and warranty as Lender requ ests from time to time. 
 
         4.  Capitalized  terms used herein  withou t  definition  shall have the 
meanings given to such terms in the Loan Agreement.  
 
 
 
         5. Each Loan Party hereby reaffirms the  r epresentations and warranties 
in each of the  existing  Loan  Documents  and agre es that (a) except as amended 
previously  or  herein,  each  Loan  Document  is a nd  shall  remain  valid  and 
enforceable  in  accordance  with its  terms  and ( b)  such  Loan  Party  has no 
defenses,  setoffs,  and  counterclaims  or claims for  recoupment  against  the 
indebtedness and obligations  represented by the No tes,  Guaranty and other Loan 
Documents. 
 
6.      Disclosure. 
 
         UNDER OREGON LAW, MOST  AGREEMENTS,  PROMI SES AND  COMMITMENTS  MADE BY 
LENDERS  AFTER  OCTOBER 3, 1989,  CONCERNING  LOANS  AND OTHER CREDIT  EXTENSIONS 
WHICH ARE NOT FOR PERSONAL,  FAMILY OR HOUSEHOLD  P URPOSES OR SECURED  SOLELY BY 
THE BORROWER'S RESIDENCE MUST BE IN WRITING, EXPRESS CONSIDERATION AND BE SIGNED 
BY THE LENDER TO BE ENFORCEABLE. 
 
 
LITHIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
LITHIA MOTORS, INC. 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 



   --------------------------------- 
 
 
LITHIA SALMIR, INC. 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
 
 
                                                                EXHIBIT 10.15.3 
 
                        THIRD AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGR EEMENT 
 
 
Dated as of: 
               ----------------------------- 
 
Parties:       LITHIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION  ("LFC" ) 
 
               LITHIA MOTORS, INC. ("LMI") 
 
               LITHIA SALMIR, INC. ("LSI") 
 
               LITHIA AIRCRAFT, INC. ("LAI") 
 
And:           U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Len der") 
 
                                    RECITALS 
 
         A. The parties  hereto have entered into a  Loan  Agreement  dated as of 
September 20, 1999, as amended by amendments  dated  as of March 6, 2000 and July 
26, 2000 (collectively, "Loan Agreement"). 
 
         B. The parties  hereto have agreed to amen d the Loan  Agreement  as set 
forth herein. 
 
For valuable consideration, the parties agree as fo llows: 
 
1.  Definitions.  The definitions of Maximum Revolv ing Loan Amount and Revolving 
Loan  Termination  Date in Section 1.1 of the Loan  Agreement are hereby deleted 
and replaced with the following: 
 
         "Maximum Revolving Loan Amount" means, as of any date of determination, 
         an amount equal to  $27,500,000  minus the  then  outstanding  aggregate 
         principal balance of the Term-Out Notes. 
 
         "Revolving Loan Termination Date" means De cember 31, 2002. 
 
2. Term Out Loans. 
 
         2.1 The last sentence of Section 3.4.1 of the Loan Agreement is deleted 
and replaced with the following: 
 
         The sum of the  principal  balance of the New  Revolving  Note plus the 



         aggregate  principal  balance of all  Term -Out  Notes  shall at no time 
         exceed $27,500,000. 
 
         2.2 The last sentence of Section 3.4.4 of the Loan Agreement is deleted 
and replaced with the following: 
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         Notwithstanding  the  foregoing,  no  Term -Out  Note shall have a final 
         maturity date which is later than December  31, 2007. 
 
3. Leased Collateral.  Sections 8.1.3(b) and 8.1.3( c) were inadvertently deleted 
from the Loan Agreement by the Second  Amendment to  Loan  Agreement.  To correct 
this error,  Sections  8.1.3(b)  and  8.1.3(c)  are  hereby  restored to the Loan 
Agreement in their original form. 
 
4.  Financial  Covenants.  Sections  11.1.5 and 11. 1.6 of the Loan Agreement are 
deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
         11.1.5  Minimum  Tangible Net Worth.  The sum of (a) LFC's Tangible Net 
         Worth plus the principal  balance,  up to a maximum of  $4,500,000,  of 
         loans made by LFC to its affiliates (exclu ding any amounts owed by such 
         affiliates to LFC under leases between LFC  and such  affiliates)  shall 
         not be less than $4,500,000. 
 
         11.1.6 LFC Fixed Charge Coverage Ratio.  L FC shall maintain,  as of the 
         last day of each fiscal quarter,  an LFC F ixed Charge Coverage Ratio of 
         at least 1.0 to 1.0. 
 
5.  Exhibit A. Exhibit A to the Loan  Agreement  is  replaced  with the Exhibit A 
attached hereto and hereby incorporated herein. 
 
6. Defined Terms.  Capitalized  terms used herein w ithout  definition shall have 
the meanings given to such terms in the Loan Agreem ent. 
 
7.  Reaffirmation.  Each Loan Party hereby  reaffir ms  the  representations  and 
warranties in each of the existing Loan  Documents and agrees that (a) except as 
amended  previously or herein,  each Loan Document is and shall remain valid and 
enforceable  in  accordance  with its  terms  and ( b)  such  Loan  Party  has no 
defenses,   setoffs,   counterclaims  or  claims  f or  recoupment   against  the 
indebtedness and obligations represented by the Not es, Guaranties and other Loan 
Documents. 
 
8. Conditions to  Effectiveness.  The effectiveness  of this Agreement is subject 
to execution of this Agreement and satisfaction of the following conditions: 
 
         8.1 Execution  and delivery to Lender of a  new New  Revolving  Note and 
Commercial Security Agreement. 
 
         8.2  Receipt  by Lender of all  documents  and  information  Lender may 
request  relating to the  authority  for and validi ty of this  Agreement and the 
other  Loan  Documents,  and to any  other  related   matters,  each in form  and 
substance satisfactory to Lender. 
 
         8.3 Execution of such documents and  satis faction by each Loan Party of 
such additional requirements as Lender reasonably r equires. 
 
9. Recitals. The Recitals are hereby incorporated h erein. 
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10. Disclosure. 
 
         UNDER OREGON LAW, MOST  AGREEMENTS,  PROMI SES AND  COMMITMENTS  MADE BY 



LENDERS  AFTER  OCTOBER 3, 1989,  CONCERNING  LOANS  AND OTHER CREDIT  EXTENSIONS 
WHICH ARE NOT FOR PERSONAL,  FAMILY OR HOUSEHOLD  P URPOSES OR SECURED  SOLELY BY 
THE BORROWER'S RESIDENCE MUST BE IN WRITING, EXPRESS CONSIDERATION AND BE SIGNED 
BY THE LENDER TO BE ENFORCEABLE. 
 
LITHIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
LITHIA MOTORS, INC. 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
 
LITHIA SALMIR, INC. 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
LITHIA AIRCRAFT, INC. 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
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                                    EXHIBIT A 
                                    --------- 
 
                                 PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
 
$27,500,000                                 Dated a s of: 
                                                        ------------------------ 
 
LITHIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION ("LFC") 
 
LITHIA AIRCRAFT, INC. ("LAI") 
 
U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION ("Lender") 
 
 



1. Type of Credit.  This note is given to evidence LFC'S and LAI's obligation to 
repay  all sums  which  Lender  may  from  time to time  advance  to LFC and LAI 
("Advances")  under a revolving line of credit.  No  Advances shall be made which 
create a maximum  amount  outstanding  at any one t ime which exceeds the maximum 
amount shown in Section 2. However,  Advances hereu nder may be borrowed,  repaid 
and reborrowed,  and the aggregate  Advances loaned   hereunder from time to time 
may exceed such maximum amount. 
 
2. Principal Balance.  The unpaid principal balance  of all Advances  outstanding 
under this note ("Principal  Balance") at one time shall not exceed  $27,500,000 
minus the  aggregate  outstanding  principal  balan ce of the Term-Out  Notes (as 
defined  in the Loan  Agreement  between  LFC,  LAI ,  Lender and  certain  other 
parties, dated as of September 20, 1999, as amended  from time to time). 
 
3.  Promise  to  Pay.  For  value  received,   LFC  and  LAI  (individually  and 
collectively,  "Borrower")  jointly  and  severally   promise to pay to Lender or 
order at PO Box 5308,  Portland,  OR, 97228 or such  other  address as Lender may 
designate,  the Principal  Balance of this note,  w ith  interest  thereon at the 
rate(s) specified in Sections 4 and 11 below. 
 
4. Interest Rate.  The interest rate on the Princip al  Balance  outstanding  may 
vary from time to time  pursuant  to the  provision s  of this  note.  Subject to 
Sections  4(b)(iii),  4(b)(iv) and 11,  interest  s hall accrue on the  Principal 
Balance  of this note from time to time at a per an num  rate  equal to the LIBOR 
Borrowing Rate. 
 
(a) Definitions. The following terms shall have the  following meanings: 
 
         "Business  Day" means any day other than a  Saturday,  Sunday,  or other 
day that commercial banks in Portland, Oregon, Minn eapolis,  Minnesota, Seattle, 
Washington  or New  York  City  are  authorized  or   required  by law to  close; 
provided,  however that when used in connection  wi th the LIBOR Rate,  such term 
shall also  exclude any day on which  dealings in U .S.  dollar  deposits are not 
carried on in the London interbank market. 
 
         "LIBOR Rate"  means,  for any day,  (the  "Current  Day"),  the average 
offered  rate for  deposits in United  States  Doll ars  (rounded  upwards to the 
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nearest  1/16 of 1%) for  delivery  of such  deposi ts on the Current Day for the 
one-month  period  commencing on the Current Day, w hich appears on Telerate Page 
3750 as of 11:00  a.m.  London  time (or such  othe r  time as of which such rate 
appears) on the day that is two Business Days  prec eding the Current Day; or the 
rate for such  deposits  determined  by Lender at s uch time  based on such other 
published service of general application as shall b e selected by Lender for such 
purpose;  provided that in lieu of determining the rate in the foregoing manner, 
Lender may  determine the rate based on the rates o ffered to Lender for deposits 
in United  States  Dollars  (rounded  upwards to th e nearest  1/16 of 1%) in the 
interbank eurodollar market at such time for delive ry on the Current Day for the 
one-month period commencing on the Current Day; and  provided,  further,  that in 
any case the LIBOR Rate  shall be  adjusted  to tak e into  account  the  maximum 
reserves  required to be maintained  for  Eurocurre ncy  liabilities  by banks as 
specified  in  Regulation  D of the Board of  Gover nors  of the Federal  Reserve 
System or any  successor  regulation.  The LIBOR Ra te for any day which is not a 
Business  Day shall be the LIBOR  Rate in  effect o n the  immediately  preceding 
Business Day.  When the LIBOR Rate is  applicable,  the interest rate  hereunder 
shall be adjusted  without  notice  effective on th e day the LIBOR Rate changes, 
but in no event shall the rate of interest be highe r than allowed by law. 
 
         "Prime Rate" means the rate of interest  w hich Lender from time to time 
establishes as its prime or reference  rate and is not, for example,  the lowest 
rate of interest which Lender  collects from any bo rrower or class of borrowers. 
When the Prime Rate is applicable, the interest rat e hereunder shall be adjusted 
without  notice  effective  on the day the Prime Ra te  changes,  but in no event 



shall the rate of interest be higher than allowed b y law. 
 
         "Prime  Borrowing  Rate"  means a variable   per annum rate equal to the 
Prime Rate. 
 
         "Telerate Page 3750" means the display des ignated as such on the Bridge 
Telerate,  Inc.  service  or any  successor  servic e  (or such other page as may 
replace page 3750 on such service for the purpose o f displaying London interbank 
offered rates of major banks for United States Doll ar deposits). 
 
(b) The LIBOR Borrowing Rate. 
 
         (i) The LIBOR  Borrowing Rate is a variabl e per annum rate equal to the 
LIBOR Rate plus 1.75%. 
 
         (ii) Any request for an Advance  shall be made in  accordance  with the 
provisions of Section 14. 
 
         (iii) If at any time the LIBOR Rate is  un ascertainable  or unavailable 
to Lender or if LIBOR Rate loans become unlawful, t he LIBOR Borrowing Rate shall 
terminate  automatically  and  immediately,  and  u nless  the  Default  Rate  is 
applicable,  the Prime Borrowing Rate automatically   shall become effective upon 
such termination. 
 
         (iv) If at any  time  after  the date  her eof  (A) any  revision  in or 
adoption of any applicable law, rule, or regulation  or in the  interpretation or 
administration thereof (i) shall subject Lender or its Eurodollar lending office 
to any tax,  duty, or other charge,  or change the basis of taxation of payments 
to Lender with respect to any loans bearing interes t based on the LIBOR Rate, or 
(ii) shall impose or modify any reserve, insurance,   special deposit, or similar 
requirements  against assets of,  deposits with or for the account of, or credit 
extended by Lender or its Eurodollar  lending offic e, or impose on Lender or its 
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Eurodollar lending office any other condition  affe cting any such loans, and (B) 
the  result of any of the  foregoing  is (i) to  in crease  the cost to Lender of 
making or  maintaining  any such  loans or (ii) to reduce  the amount of any sum 
receivable under this note by Lender or its Eurodol lar lending office,  Borrower 
shall pay Lender within 15 days after demand by Len der such additional amount as 
will compensate  Lender for such increased cost or reduction.  The determination 
hereunder by Lender of such additional amount shall  be conclusive in the absence 
of manifest error. If Lender demands  compensation  under this Section 4(b)(iv), 
Borrower may, upon payment of such additional amoun t, unless the Default Rate is 
applicable,  elect to have  the  Prime  Borrowing  Rate  apply to the  Principal 
Balance of this note. 
 
         (v) If the  LIBOR  Borrowing  Rate is in  effect,  Borrower  shall  pay 
interest  based  on such  rate,  plus any  other  a pplicable  taxes  or  charges 
hereunder,  even though  Lender may have  obtained  the funds loaned to Borrower 
from sources other than the London interbank market .  Lender's  determination of 
the LIBOR  Borrowing  Rate and any such taxes or ch arges  shall be conclusive in 
the absence of manifest error. 
 
5.  Computation  of Interest.  All interest on this  note will be computed at the 
applicable rate based on a 360-day year and applied  to the actual number of days 
elapsed. 
 
6. Payment Schedule 
 
(a) Principal. Principal shall be paid on December 31, 2002. 
 
(b) Interest. Interest shall be paid on the 1st day  of each month beginning with 
the month after the date this note is dated, and at  maturity. 
 



7. Prepayment.  Prepayments may be made at any time  without  penalty.  Principal 
prepayments  will not postpone the date of or chang e the amount of any regularly 
scheduled  payment.  At  the  time  of any  princip al  prepayment,  all  accrued 
interest, fees, costs and expenses shall also be pa id. 
 
8. Change in Payment  Amount.  Each time the intere st  rate on this note changes 
the holder of this note may,  from time to time,  i n holder's  sole  discretion, 
increase or decrease the amount of each of the inst allments  remaining unpaid at 
the time of such change in rate to an amount holder  in its sole discretion deems 
necessary  to  continue  amortizing  the  Principal   Balance  at the  same  rate 
established by the installment amounts specified in  Section 6(a), whether or not 
a "balloon"  payment may also be due upon  maturity  of this note.  Holder  shall 
notify  the  undersigned  of each such  change in  writing.  Whether  or not the 
installment amount is increased under this Section 8, Borrower understands that, 
as a result of increases in the rate of interest th e final payment due,  whether 
or not a  "balloon"  payment,  shall  include the e ntire  Principal  Balance and 
interest  thereon  then  outstanding,  and may be  substantially  more  than the 
installment specified in Section 6. 
 
9. Alternate  Payment Date.  Notwithstanding  any o ther term of this note, if in 
any month there is no day on which a scheduled  pay ment  would  otherwise be due 
(e.g.  February  31), such payment shall be paid on  the last banking day of that 
month. 
 
10. Payment by Automatic Debit. 
 
         Borrower hereby authorizes Lender to autom atically deduct the amount of 
all  principal  and interest  payments  from accoun t  number  153600740853  with 
Lender.  If there are  insufficient  funds in the  account to pay the  automatic 
deduction in full, Lender may allow the account to become  overdrawn,  or Lender 
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may  reverse  the  automatic  deduction.  Borrower  will pay all the fees on the 
account which result from the automatic deductions,   including any overdraft and 
non-sufficient  funds  charges.  If for any  reason   Lender  does not charge the 
account for a payment,  or if an automatic  payment  is reversed,  the payment is 
still due according to this note. If the account is  a Money Market Account,  the 
number of  withdrawals  from that  account is limit ed as set out in the  account 
agreement.  Lender  may  cancel  the  automatic  de duction  at any  time  in its 
discretion. 
 
         Provided, however, if no account number is  entered above, Borrower does 
not want to make payments by automatic debit. 
 
11. Default. 
 
(a) Any Event of Default under the Loan Agreement b etween  Borrower,  Lender and 
Lithia Motors, Inc. dated September 20, 1999, and a ny amendments, modifications, 
supplements, renewals, substitutions and replacemen ts thereof or therefor, shall 
be an event of default hereunder. 
 
(b) Without prejudice to any right of Lender to req uire payment on demand,  upon 
the occurrence of an event of default,  Lender may terminate all  commitments to 
lend, cease making Advances and declare the entire unpaid  Principal  Balance on 
this note and all accrued unpaid interest  immediat ely due and payable,  without 
notice;  provided,  however,  that if any  proceedi ng  under any  bankruptcy  or 
insolvency  laws is commenced by or against  Borrow er,  all  commitments to lend 
shall be immediately  terminated without notice and  the entire Principal Balance 
and all accrued,  unpaid interest shall, without no tice,  become immediately due 
and payable. Upon default, including failure to pay  upon final maturity, Lender, 
at its option,  may also,  if  permitted  under  ap plicable  law,  increase  the 
interest rate on this note by 2% per annum ("Defaul t  Rate").  The interest rate 
will not exceed the maximum rate  permitted by appl icable  law. In addition,  if 
any payment of principal or interest is 19 or more days past due,  Borrower will 



be charged a late charge of 5% of the delinquent pa yment. 
 
12. Evidence of Principal Balance; Payment on Deman d. Holder's records shall, at 
any time, be conclusive  evidence of the unpaid  Pr incipal  Balance and interest 
owing on this note.  Notwithstanding  any other  pr ovisions of this note, in the 
event  holder  makes  Advances  hereunder  which  r esult in an unpaid  Principal 
Balance on this note which at any time exceeds the maximum  amount  specified in 
Section 2,  Borrower  agrees that all such  Advance s,  with  interest,  shall be 
payable on demand. 
 
13. Demand Note. If this note is payable on demand,   Borrower  acknowledges  and 
agrees  that (a) Lender is entitled to demand  Borr ower's  immediate  payment in 
full of all amounts  owing  hereunder  and (b) neit her  anything to the contrary 
contained  herein or in any other loan documents  ( including but not limited to, 
provisions  relating to  defaults,  rights of cure,   default  rate of  interest, 
installment  payments,  late charges,  periodic  re view of Borrower's  financial 
condition,  and covenants) nor any act of Lender pu rsuant to any such provisions 
shall limit or impair Lender's right or ability to require Borrower's payment in 
full of all amounts owing hereunder immediately upo n Lender's demand. 
 
14. Requests for Advances. 
 
(a) Any Advance may be made upon the request of Bor rower (if an individual), any 
of the  undersigned  (if  Borrower  consists of mor e than one  individual),  any 
person or persons  authorized  in  subsection  (b) of this  Section  14, and any 
person or persons otherwise  authorized to execute and deliver  promissory notes 
to Lender on behalf of Borrower. 
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(b) Borrower hereby  authorizes any one of the foll owing  individuals to request 
Advances: 
 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------- 
 
--------------------------------------------------- ----------------------------- 
 
(c) All Advances  shall be disbursed by deposit  di rectly to Borrower's  account 
number  153600740853 with Lender,  by cashier's che ck issued to Borrower,  or by 
payment to any Seller. 
 
(d) Borrower  agrees that Lender shall have no obli gation to verify the identity 
of any person  making any  request  pursuant to thi s  Section  14, and  Borrower 
assumes  all  risks of the  validity  and  authoriz ation  of such  requests.  In 
consideration of Lender agreeing, at its sole discr etion,  to make Advances upon 
such  requests,  Borrower  promises  to  pay  holde r,  in  accordance  with  the 
provisions of this note, the Principal  Balance  to gether with interest  thereon 
and other sums due hereunder, although any Advances  may have been requested by a 
person or persons not authorized to do so. 
 
15.  Periodic  Review.  Lender  will  review  Borro wer's  credit  accommodations 
periodically.  At the time of the review,  Borrower  will furnish Lender with any 
additional  information  regarding  Borrower's  fin ancial condition and business 
operations that Lender requests. This information m ay include but is not limited 
to, financial statements,  tax returns, lists of as sets and liabilities,  agings 
of receivables and payables, inventory schedules, b udgets and forecasts. If upon 
review,  Lender,  in its  sole  discretion,  determ ines  that  there  has been a 
material adverse change in Borrower's financial  co ndition,  Borrower will be in 
default. Upon default, Lender shall have all rights  specified herein. 
 
16. Notices.  Any notice  hereunder may be given by  ordinary mail,  postage paid 
and  addressed  to  Borrower  at the last known  ad dress of Borrower as shown on 
holder's records. If Borrower consists of more than  one person,  notification of 
any of said persons shall be complete notification of all. 
 



17.  Attorney  Fees.  Whether or not  litigation  o r  arbitration  is commenced, 
Borrower  promises  to pay all  costs of  collectin g  overdue  amounts.  Without 
limiting the foregoing,  in the event that holder c onsults an attorney regarding 
the  enforcement  of any of its rights under this n ote or any document  securing 
the same,  or if this note is placed in the hands o f an attorney for  collection 
or if suit or  litigation  is  brought  to  enforce   this  note or any  document 
securing the same,  Borrower  promises to pay all c osts thereof  including  such 
additional sums as the court or arbitrator(s) may a djudge reasonable as attorney 
fees,  including  without  limitation,  costs and a ttorney  fees incurred in any 
appellate  court,  in  any  proceeding  under  the  bankruptcy  code,  or in any 
receivership and post-judgment attorney fees incurr ed in enforcing any judgment. 
 
18. Waivers;  Consent. Each party hereto, whether m aker, co-maker,  guarantor or 
otherwise,  waives  diligence,   demand,  presentme nt  for  payment,  notice  of 
non-payment,  protest  and notice of protest  and w aives all  defenses  based on 
suretyship or impairment of  collateral.  Without n otice to Borrower and without 
diminishing or affecting  Lender's rights or Borrow er's  obligations  hereunder, 
Lender may deal in any manner  with any person who at any time is liable for, or 
provides  any real or personal  property  collatera l  for, any  indebtedness  of 
Borrower to Lender,  including the indebtedness  ev idenced by this note. Without 
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limiting the foregoing,  Lender may, in its sole di scretion: (a) make secured or 
unsecured  loans to Borrower and agree to any numbe r of waivers,  modifications, 
extensions  and  renewals  of any  length  of such  loans,  including  the  loan 
evidenced by this note; (b) impair, release (with o r without substitution of new 
collateral),  fail to perfect a security interest i n, fail to preserve the value 
of,  fail to  dispose of in  accordance  with  appl icable  law,  any  collateral 
provided by any person;  (c) sue, fail to sue,  agr ee not to sue,  release,  and 
settle or compromise with, any person. 
 
19. Joint and Several Liability.  All undertakings of the undersigned  Borrowers 
are joint and several and are binding upon any mari tal community of which any of 
the undersigned are members.  Holder's rights and r emedies under this note shall 
be cumulative. 
 
20.  Governing Law. This note shall be governed by and construed and enforced in 
accordance  with the laws of the State of Oregon  w ithout regard to conflicts of 
law principles;  provided,  however,  that to the e xtent that Lender has greater 
rights or remedies  under  Federal law,  this  prov ision  shall not be deemed to 
deprive  Lender of such rights and  remedies as may  be available  under  Federal 
law. 
 
21.  Renewal  Note.  This note renews,  increases t he amount of and modifies the 
terms of the  promissory  note  executed by Borrowe r  dated July 26, 2000 in the 
principal amount of $20,000,000, but shall not be d eemed to be a replacement for 
or to constitute a novation of such note. 
 
22.     Disclosure. 
 
         UNDER OREGON LAW, MOST  AGREEMENTS,  PROMI SES AND  COMMITMENTS  MADE BY 
LENDERS  AFTER  OCTOBER 3, 1989,  CONCERNING  LOANS  AND OTHER CREDIT  EXTENSIONS 
WHICH ARE NOT FOR PERSONAL,  FAMILY OR HOUSEHOLD  P URPOSES OR SECURED  SOLELY BY 
THE BORROWER'S RESIDENCE MUST BE IN WRITING, EXPRESS CONSIDERATION AND BE SIGNED 
BY THE LENDER TO BE ENFORCEABLE. 
 
 
THE  UNDERSIGNED  HEREBY  ACKNOWLEDGES  RECEIPT  OF A  COMPLETED  COPY  OF  THIS 
DOCUMENT. 
 
 
LITHIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION 
 
By: 



   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
 
LITHIA AIRCRAFT, INC. 
 
By: 
   --------------------------------- 
 
Title: 
   --------------------------------- 
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                                                                      EXHIBIT 21 
                              LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES 
 
------------------------------------------------- - ----------- ----------------------------- 
Name of Entity                                    S tate of     ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME(S) 
                                                  o rigin       (if different than entity 
                                                               name) 
------------------------------------------------- - ----------- ----------------------------- 
 
Lithia Financial Corporation                      O regon 
Lithia Rentals, Inc.                              O regon       Avis Rent-A-Car 
Lithia Real Estate, Inc.                          O regon 
Lithia Motors Support Services, Inc.              O regon 
Lithia TLM, LLC)                                  O regon       Lithia Toyota 
Lithia Grants Pass Auto Center, LLC (owned by     O regon       Lithia Grants Pass Auto 
Lithia Motors, Inc. and LGPAC, Inc.,  a wholly                 Center 
owned subsidiary of Lithia Motors) 
Lithia Dodge, LLC(owned by Lithia Motors, Inc.    O regon       Lithia Dodge 
and Lithia DM, Inc.,  a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Lithia Motors) 
Saturn of Southwest Oregon, Inc.                  O regon       Saturn of Southwest Oregon 
SOE, LLC (owned 100% by Lithia SH, LLC a wholly   O regon       Saturn of Eugene 
owned subsidiary of Lithia Motors, Inc.) 
Lithia HPI, Inc.                                  O regon       Lithia Isuzu 
                                                               Lithia Volkswagen 
Lithia DE, Inc.                                   O regon       Lithia Dodge of Eugene 
Lithia Chrysler Plymouth Jeep Eagle, Inc.         O regon       Lithia Chrysler Plymouth 
                                                               Jeep 
Lithia BNM, Inc.                                  O regon       Lithia Nissan 
                                                               Lithia BMW 
Hutchins Imported Motors, Inc.                    O regon       Lithia Toyota of Springfield 
Hutchins Eugene Nissan, Inc.                      O regon       Lithia Nissan of Eugene 
Lithia Klamath, Inc.                              O regon       Lithia Dodge Chrysler 
                                                               Plymouth Jeep of Klamath 
                                                               Falls 
                                                               Lithia Toyota of Klamath 
                                                               Falls 
Lithia Nissan of Roseburg, Inc.                   O regon       Lithia Nissan of Roseburg 
Lithia of Roseburg, Inc.                          O regon       Lithia Dodge Chrysler 
                                                               Plymouth Jeep of Roseburg 
Lithia Rose-FT, Inc.                              O regon       Lithia Ford Lincoln Mercury 
                                                               of Roseburg 
Lithia Medford LM, Inc.                           O regon       Lithia Lincoln Mercury 
                                                               Lithia Suzuki 
                                                               Lithia Mazda 
 



Lithia Medford Hon, Inc.                          O regon       Lithia Honda 
Lithia AB, Inc.                                   C alifornia   Acura of Bakersfield 
Lithia BB, Inc.                                   C alifornia   BMW of Bakersfield 
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------------------------------------------------- - ----------- ----------------------------- 
Name of Entity                                    S tate of     ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME(S) 
                                                  o rigin       (if different than entity 
                                                               name) 
------------------------------------------------- - ----------- ----------------------------- 
Lithia CIMR, Inc.                                 C alifornia   Lithia Chevrolet of Redding 
                                                               Lithia Mazda of Redding 
Lithia DC, Inc.                                   C alifornia   Lithia Dodge of Concord 
Lithia FMF, Inc.                                  C alifornia   Lithia Ford of Fresno 
Lithia FN, Inc.                                   C alifornia   Lithia Ford Lincoln Mercury 
                                                               of Napa 
Lithia FVHC, Inc.                                 C alifornia   Lithia Ford of Concord 
Lithia JEF, Inc.                                  C alifornia   Lithia Hyundai of Fresno 
Lithia MMF, Inc.                                  C alifornia   Lithia Mazda of Fresno 
                                                               Lithia Suzuki of Fresno 
Lithia NB, Inc.                                   C alifornia   Lithia Nissan of Bakersfield 
Lithia NF, Inc.                                   C alifornia   Lithia Nissan of Fresno 
Lithia TKV, Inc.                                  C alifornia   Lithia Toyota of Vacaville 
Lithia TR, Inc.                                   C alifornia   Lithia Toyota of Redding 
Lithia VWC, Inc.                                  C alifornia   Lithia Sun Valley Volkswagen 
                                                               Lithia Sun Valley Isuzu 
Lithia Centennial Chrysler Plymouth Jeep, Inc.    C olorado     Lithia Centennial Chrysler 
                                                               Plymouth Jeep 
Lithia Cherry Creek Dodge, Inc.                   C olorado     Lithia Cherry Creek Dodge 
Lithia Colorado Chrysler Plymouth, Inc.           C olorado     Lithia Colorado Chrysler 
                                                               Plymouth 
                                                               Lithia Colorado Kia 
 
Lithia Colorado Jeep, Inc.                        C olorado     Lithia Colorado Jeep 
Lithia Colorado Springs Jeep Chrysler Plymouth,   C olorado     Lithia Colorado Springs 
Inc.                                                           Jeep Chrysler Plymouth 
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------------------------------------------------- - ----------- ----------------------------- 
Name of Entity                                    S tate of     ASSUMED BUSINESS NAME(S) 
                                                  o rigin       (if different than entity 
                                                               name) 
------------------------------------------------- - ----------- ----------------------------- 
Lithia Foothills Chrysler, Inc.                   C olorado     Lithia Foothills Chrysler 
                                                               Lithia Foothills Hyundai 
Camp Automotive, Inc.                             D elaware     Camp BMW 
                                                               Camp Chevrolet 
                                                               Camp Subaru 
Roundtree Isuzu, Inc.  (owned by                  I daho        Roundtree Isuzu 
Lithia/Roundtree Holding Company, Inc. a wholly 
owned subsidiary of  Lithia Motors Inc.) 
Roundtree Chevrolet, Inc. (owned by               I daho        Roundtree Chevrolet 
Lithia/Roundtree Holding Company, Inc. a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Lithia Motors Inc.) 
Roundtree Lincoln-Mercury, Inc. (owned by         I daho        Roundtree Lincoln-Mercury 
Lithia/Roundtree Holding Company, Inc a wholly 
owned subsidiary of Lithia Motors Inc.) 
Roundtree DW, Inc.  (owned by Lithia/Roundtree    I daho        Roundtree Daewoo 



Holding Company, Inc. a wholly owned subsidiary 
of Lithia Motors Inc.) 
Lithia Ford of Boise, Inc.                        I daho        Lithia Ford of Boise 
Lithia Chrysler Plymouth of Boise, Inc.           I daho        Lithia Chrysler of Boise 
Lithia of Pocatello, Inc.                         I daho        Lithia Chrysler Dodge of 
                                                               Pocatello 
                                                               Lithia Hyundai of Pocatello 
Lithia Poca-Hon, Inc.                             I daho        Honda of Pocatello 
Lithia SALMIR, Inc.                               N evada       Lithia Audi of Reno 
                                                               Lithia Volkswagen of Reno 
                                                               Lithia Isuzu of Reno 
                                                               Lithia Lincoln Mercury of 
                                                               Reno 
                                                               Lithia Suzuki of Sparks 
                                                               Lithia Hyundai of Reno 
Lithia Reno Sub-Hyun, Inc.                        N evada       Lithia Reno Subaru 
Lithia VS, LLC (owned by Camp Automotive, Inc.)   W ashington   Camp Volvo 
Lithia Dodge of Tri-Cities, Inc.                  W ashington   Lithia Dodge of Tri-Cities 
Lithia DC of Renton, Inc.                         W ashington   Lithia Dodge of Renton 
                                                               Lithia Chrysler Jeep of 
                                                               Renton 
Lithia FTC, Inc.                                  W ashington   Lithia Ford of Tri-Cities 
TC Hon, Inc.                                      W ashington   Honda of Tri-Cities 
Lithia of Sioux Falls, Inc.                       S outh        Lithia Subaru of Sioux Falls 
                                                  D akota 
Lithia Automotive, Inc.                           S outh        Chevrolet of Sioux Falls 
                                                  D akota 
Lithia Chrysler Jeep of Anchorage, Inc.           A laska       Lithia Chrysler Jeep of 
                                                               Anchorage 
 
 
 
All entities are owned directly by Lithia Motors, I nc. unless specifically noted 
to the contrary. 
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                                                                      EXHIBIT 23 
 
 
 
 
               CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUB LIC ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
Board of Directors 
Lithia Motors, Inc. and Subsidiaries 
 
We consent to incorporation  by reference in the  r egistration  statements (Nos. 
333-45553 and 333-43593,  333-69169, 333-69225, 333 -80459 and 333-39092) on Form 
S-8 of Lithia Motors, Inc. of our report dated Febr uary 9, 2001, relating to the 
consolidated  balance  sheets of Lithia  Motors,  I nc.  and  Subsidiaries  as of 
December  31,  2000  and  1999,  and  the  related  consolidated  statements  of 
operations,  changes  in  shareholders'  equity,  a nd cash flows for each of the 
years in the three-year  period ended December 31, 2000, which report appears in 
the December 31, 2000 annual report on Form 10-K of  Lithia Motors, Inc. 
 
 
 
/s/ KPMG LLP 
 
Portland, Oregon, 
March 19, 2001 
 



 

                                                                     Exhibit 99 
 
                                  RISK FACTORS 
 
The following  summarizes certain risks, which Lith ia's  management believes are 
specific to its  business.  These should not be vie wed as including all risks to 
Lithia. 
 
LITHIA  OPERATING  RESULTS  ARE  AFFECTED BY  SEASO NALITY  AND THE TIMING OF ITS 
ACQUISITIONS. 
 
Lithia's business is seasonal with a disproportiona te  amount of sales occurring 
in the second and third quarters. Further, Lithia i ncurs a significant amount of 
training  and  integration  costs  upon  the  acqui sition  of  each  new  store. 
Accordingly,   due  to  such   seasonality  and  th e  timing  and  frequency  of 
acquisitions,  Lithia will likely experience quarte r-to-quarter  fluctuations in 
its operating  results.  See "Management's  Discuss ion and Analysis of Financial 
Condition  and  Results of  Operations"  and  "Sele cted  Consolidated  Quarterly 
Financial Data." 
 
FUTURE FUNDING WILL BE NEEDED TO FINANCE FUTURE  AC QUISITIONS. 
 
Acquisitions of additional stores will require  sub stantial  capital  investment 
and could have a significant impact on Lithia's fin ancial position and operating 
results.  Any such  acquisitions  may involve the u se of cash generated  through 
operations,  from borrowings or from the issuance o f debt or equity  securities, 
either in the public market or to sellers. The use of any financing source could 
have  the  effect  of  reducing  the  per  share  e arnings  of  Lithia.   Future 
acquisitions  will likely result in the accumulatio n of additional  goodwill and 
intangible  assets,  which would result in higher  amortization  charges,  under 
current accounting rules, to Lithia, and could also  reduce earnings. 
 
NEW ACQUISITIONS REQUIRE THE CONSENT OF MANUFACTURERS. 
 
Lithia is required to obtain  consent from each rel evant  manufacturer  prior to 
the  acquisition  of a store  franchise.  In  deter mining  whether to approve an 
acquisition,  a  manufacturer  considers  many fact ors  including  the financial 
condition and ownership  structure of the applicant ,  the number of stores owned 
by the applicant and the applicant's  performance w ith those stores.  Most major 
manufacturers have now established limitations or g uidelines on: 
 
         o        the total  number of such  manufa cturers'  stores  that may be 
                  acquired by a single dealer; 
 
         o        the  number of stores  that may b e  acquired  in any market or 
                  region; 
 
         o        the  percentage  of total sales t hat may be  controlled by one 
                  dealer group; 
 
         o        the ownership of contiguous store s; 
 
         o        the dualing of a franchise with a nother brand; and 
 
         o        the frequency of acquisitions 
 
Although Lithia currently owns more Chrysler produc t stores than provided in its 
guidelines, Chrysler has continued to approve new a cquisitions. Lithia's ability 
to meet  manufacturer's  requirements for acquisiti ons in the future will have a 
direct bearing on its ability to complete  acquisit ions  and continue its growth 
strategy. 
 
In determining  whether to approve an acquisition b y Lithia, a manufacturer also 
considers  factors such as the  Company's  past  pe rformance  as measured by the 



manufacturer's  customer satisfaction index ("CSI")  scores and sales performance 
at the Company's existing  franchises.  At any poin t in time, a small percentage 
of Lithia's franchises will have CSI scores below t he manufacturers'  sales zone 
averages  or  achieved   sales   performances   bel ow  the  target  set  by  the 
manufacturer.  Failure to maintain satisfactory CSI  scores and sales performance 
goals may adversely affect Lithia's ability to comp lete additional acquisitions. 
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LITHIA IS DEPENDENT ON ITS CURRENT KEY  PERSONNEL  AND ITS SUCCESS IN ATTRACTING 
ADDITIONAL MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL. 
 
Lithia's  success will depend largely on the effort s and abilities of its senior 
management, particularly Sidney B. DeBoer, Lithia's  Chairman and Chief Executive 
Officer, M. L. Dick Heimann, Lithia's President and  Chief Operating Officer, and 
R.  Bradford  Gray,  Lithia's  Executive  Vice-Pres ident.  Lithia  does not have 
employment or non-compete  agreements with any of i ts key management  personnel. 
Further,  Mr. DeBoer and/or Mr. Heimann are identif ied in most of Lithia's store 
franchise  agreements as the  individuals  who cont rol the  franchises  and upon 
whose financial resources and management  expertise  the manufactures have relied 
upon when awarding,  or approving the transfer of, such franchises.  The loss of 
either of those  individuals  could have a material   adverse  affect on Lithia's 
on-going     relationship     with    its     vehic le     manufacturers.     See 
"Business--Relationships with Automobile Manufactur ers." 
 
In addition, Lithia places substantial responsibili ty on the general managers of 
its stores for the profitability of such stores. Li thia has increased its number 
of stores from 7 in December 1996 to 56 as of March  2001.  This rapid  expansion 
has resulted in the need to hire additional manager s and, as Lithia continues to 
expand,  the need for  additional  experienced  man agers  will  become even more 
critical.  Many  stores  are  offered  for sale to enable the  owner/manager  to 
retire.  These potential  acquisitions  are viable to Lithia only if replacement 
management can be retained.  The market for qualifi ed  general mangers is highly 
competitive.  The  loss  of the  services  of key  management  personnel  or the 
inability to attract additional qualified managers could have a material adverse 
effect on Lithia's business and the execution of it s growth strategy. 
 
LITHIA NEEDS TO IMPROVE OPERATIONS IN SOME STORES I T ACQUIRES. 
 
Lithia  sometimes  acquires  stores with net profit   margins that are materially 
below its historical average net profit margin. In order to maintain its current 
net  profit  margin and to make the  acquisitions  profitable,  Lithia  needs to 
successfully  install new  management  and sales  t echnicians  in the store.  No 
assurance can be given that Lithia will be able to improve the  profitability of 
those stores. 
 
LITHIA IS DEPENDENT ON FUTURE ACQUISITIONS FOR ITS GROWTH. 
 
The U.S.  automobile  industry is considered a matu re  industry in which minimal 
growth is  expected  in unit sales of new  vehicles .  Accordingly,  a  principal 
component of Lithia's growth in sales is to make ad ditional  acquisitions in its 
existing and new geographic markets. 
 
Lithia's future growth and financial  success will be dependent upon a number of 
factors  including its ability to identify  accepta ble  acquisition  candidates, 
negotiate favorable terms, obtain the consent of au tomobile manufacturers,  hire 
and train  professional  management and sales  pers onnel at each new store,  and 
promptly and profitably  integrate the acquired ope ration into the Company.  See 
"Business Growth Strategy." 
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